Project Summary Sheet
NY Pulteney I, LLC
August 2021

Project Description

NY Pulteney I, LLC is the subsidiary under Delaware River Solar, LLC that will build, own and operate a 3 MW community
solar farm at 8897 Chidsey Hill Road in the Town of Pulteney. Approximately 23 acres of the 68-acre parcel will be
leased for the project. The land sits as vacant farmland now. Electricity will be sold under the community solar model,
whereby local residents who live in NYSEG's territory will be given the option to purchase it to save on their electricity
bills.

Total Project Investment $6,160,000
Jobs Retained 0
Job Created 0

Short-term job potential: approximately 35 construction jobs will be created
Long-term job potential: various professions will be hired on a part-time,
contract basis as needed during the life of the project, such as electrical workers
and lawncare professionals

Benefit to Cost Ratio 3:1

Estimated PILOT Savings $336,000

Estimated Mortgage Tax Savings $40,000

Estimated Sales Tax Savings $278,000

Total Estimated Savings $654,000

Comments The project would put into use vacant land and generate $401,000 in additional

property tax revenue over 20 years for the taxing jurisdictions based on the
PILOT schedule.

Estimated Project Start Date November 2021
Estimated Project Completion Date May 2022

Evaluative Criteria for Energy Projects

1. Private Sector Investment — The project will result in $6.2 million private sector investment, create construction jobs
and induce local spending for lodging, restaurants and gas stations during the construction period.

2. Advances State Renewable Energy Production Goals — This project will assist in meeting Gov. Cuomo’s goals of 70%
in electric generation from renewable sources by 2030 and an 85% reduction in greenhouse gases by 2050.



No. 1603 - A( - 0L,

Application To

STEUBEN COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY/
STEUBEN AREA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
For
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE**

Section I: Applicant Information

Please answer all questions. Use “None” or “Not Applicable” where necessary.

A) Appli Luf . iving benefit:
Applicant Name: _NY Pulteney I, LLC
Applicant Address: _140 E 45" Street, Suite 32B-1, New York, NY 10017

Phone: 646-998-6495 Fax: N/A

Website: E-mail: peter.dolgos@delawareriversolar.com
Federal ID#: 85-3900097 NAICS: 221114

Will a Real Estate Holding Company be utilized to own the Project property/facility? [ Yes or Xl No
What is the name of the Real Estate Holding Company: N/A

Federal ID#: N/A

B) Authorized Signatory;

Name:  Peter Dolgos

Title: Senior Vice President
Address: 140 E 45" Street, Suite 32B-1, New York, NY 10017
Phone: 646-998-6495 Fax: N/A

E-Mail: peter.dolgos@delawareriversolar.com

o C C Gf diff from individual leti lication):

Name: N/A
Title: N/A
Address: N/A
Phone: N/A Fax: N/A
E-Mail: N/A

D) Company Counsel:
Name of Attorney: Richard Chun

Firm Name: Law Office of Richard W. Chun
Address: 1225 Franklin Avenue. Suite 325, Garden City, NY 11530
Phone: 646-998-6403 Fax: 917-591-9441

E-mail: rchun@rwc-legal.com




E) Identify t} . bei Lof fhe A select all tl I);

1. Exemption from Sales Tax XlYes or  No
2. Exemption from Mortgage Tax X] Yes or No
3. Exemption from Real Property Tax Yes or  No
4, Tax Exempt Financing * [] Yes or[X No

* (typically for not-for-profits & small qualified manufacturers)

Corporation O Partnership ]
Public Corporation [ Joint Venture O
Sole Proprietorship O Limited Liability Company B}
Other (please specify)

Year Established: 2020

State in which Organization is established: New York

NY FINCOIV.LLC 100%

H) Appli Busi D T
Describe in detail company background, products, customers, goods and services. Description is critical in
determining eligibility:_NY Pulteney I, LLC (the “Applicant™) is a project company specific to the
community solar farm and will develop. construct, own and operate_the proposed solar facility. Power
generated by the solar facility will be sold to local residents and businesses that sign up with the Applicant’s
Community Solar Program.

Estimated % of sales within County/City/Town/Village: 50%
Estimated % of sales outside County/City/Town/Village. but within New York State: 50%
Estimated % of sales outside New York State but within the U.S.: 0%
Estimated % of sales outside the U.S. _ 0%

(*Percentage to equal 100%)

I) What percentage of your total annual supplies, raw materials and vendor services are purchased from
firms in County/City/Town Village. _Construction Phase: Certain materials such as fencing, gravel,
landscape plantings will be locally sourced to the extent possible. Operation Phase: Minimal supplies
and materials are necessary during operation. Vendor services (i.e. landscaping. snow removal and
general maintenance) and construction labor will be locally sourced to the extent possible).

(RS ]



Section I1: Prdjéct Description & Details

A) Project Location:

Municipality or Municipalities of current operations: Town of Pulteney (future operations)
Provide the property address of the Proposed Project: 8897 Chidsey Hill Rd. Pulteney. New York, 14418
Tax ID: 012.00-01-008.200

Will the Project result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Project occupant
located within the state? [Yes or [X] No

If Yes, explain how, notwithstanding the aforementioned closing or activity reduction, the Agency’s
Financial Assistance is required to prevent the Project from relocating out of the State, or is reasonably
necessary to preserve the Project occupant’s competitive position in its respective industry: N/A

What are the current real estate taxes on the proposed Project Site? N/A

If amount of current taxes is not available, provide assessed value for each:

Land: $.109,500 Note: Obtained from Image Mate online records.

Buildings(s): $ NA  Note: There are no existing buildings located on the property.

Are Real Property Taxes current?  [X Yesor [ ] No

Town/City/Village:_ Town of Pulteney School District: Hammondsport Central

Does the Applicant or any related entity currently hold fee title to the Project site? [ Yes or [X] No

If No, indicate name of present owner of the Project Site: Joann Peterson — NY Pulteney I, LLC has an
executed lease with the Joann Peterson for the Project Site.

Does Applicant or related entity have an option/contract to purchase the Project site? [_] Yes or [X] No

Describe the present use of the proposed Project site: The proposed Project site is part of a larger portion of

property. The project site is an undeveloped/agricultural field. The property may be subdivided.

B) Please provide narrative of project and the purpose of the project (new build, renovations, and/or
equipment purchases). Identify specific uses occurring within the project. Describe any and all
tenants and any/all end users: (This information is critical in determining projecteligibility): _

The Project site will be leased to only NY Pulteney 1. LLC: there will be no subleases of the Project site to
any third parties (except for any required lease/sublease with the Agency). The Property is an approximate
68 acre parcel of which approximately 23 acres will be leased by the Applicant as the Project Site.

The Project is approximately 3 MWac and will be interconnected to the existing NYSEG grid. This Project
is a new build and will be comprised of a) racking to mount solar modules (such racking is generally pile
driven into the ground). b) solar modules, ¢) inverters and transformers to sit on a concrete pad and d)
assorted electrical components and wiring. The electricity generated from the solar farm will be sold to
NYSEG customers that are part of the Applicant’s Community Solar Program.




Describe the reasons why the Agency’s Financial Assistance is necessary, and the effect the Project
will have on the Applicant’s business or operations. Focus on competitiveness issues, project
shortfalls, etc... Your eligibility determination will be based in part on your answer (attach additional
pages if necessary):

The project is not viable if fully taxed, and therefore the Project will not move forward without the
Agency’s financial assistance to bring cost (taxes) certainty to the Project. Tax certainty will allow the
Project to move forward while providing fair compensation in the form of clean, discounted energy to the
Town of Pulteney and the other municipalities within Steuben County.

In addition, the Project is within the NYSEG utility zone, which historically has lower electricity rates than
other utilities (Central Hudson, Orange, Rockland, National Grid, etc). Consequently, in order for the
Applicant to offer electricity at a discount to customers enrolled in Applicant’s Community Solar Program,
the revenue generated by the Project is expected to be lower than comparable projects in other areas. This
results in returns below generally expected market returns on a solar project which would cause both
financing parties and investors to seek investment elsewhere. The financial assistance provided by the
Agency in terms of tax relief will provide financing parties and investors certainty in tax payments that will
alleviate some of their risk on a Project with returns that are below market average.

Please confirm by checking the box, below, if there is likelihood that the Project would not be
undertaken but for the Financial Assistance provided by the Agency? x] Yesor J No

If the Project could be undertaken without Financial Assistance provided by the Agency, then provide a
statement in the space provided below indicating why the Project should be undertaken by the Agency: N/A

If the Applicant is unable to obtain Financial Assistance for the Project, what will be the impact on
the Applicant and County/City/Town/Village? Steuben County and the Town of Pulteney will lose an
opportunity to have affordable clean energy that is accessible. Residents that would have enrolled in the
Applicant’s Community Solar Program will lose the opportunity to receive a discount on their energy bills.
The taxing jurisdiction will lose the opportunity to earn an amount greater than the current real property
taxes being generated on the existing land. The landowner will lose the opportunity to earn rental income
on private land.

C) Will Project include leasing any equipment Olyes or KINo

If Yes, please describe:

D) Site Characteristics:

Describe the present zoning/land use: _The Project Site is located Zoning District #3 on an undeveloped
field. The Project is a “Large-Scale Solar Energy System” under the Town of Pulteney Solar Energy
Law which allows Large-Scale Solar Energy Systems by way of issuance of a special use permit within
District #3. including site plan approval.

Will the Project meet zoning/land use requirements at the proposed location? [X] Yes or [_] No
If not, please describe required zoning/land use:

If a change in zoning/land use is required, please provide details/status of any request for change of
zoning/land use requirements: N/A

Is the proposed project located on a site where the known or potential presence of contaminants is

complicating the development/use of the property? [f yes, please explain: N/A




E) Provide any additional site information or details that may be applicable to the proposed project:
As indicated herein, the subject property may be subdivided such that the solar facility is on a separate
lot than the remaining lands.

F) Select Project Type for all end users at project site (you may check more than one):

Industrial O Back Office O
Acquisition of Existing Facility [] Retail O
Housing | Mixed Use ]
Equipment Purchase O Facility for Aging ]
Multi-Tenant ] Civic Facility (not for profit) [
Commercial U Other Solar Farm x]

Will customers personally visit the Project site for either of the following economic activities? If yes with
respect to either economic activity indicated below, complete the Retail Questionnaire contained in Section
I1I of the Application.

Retail Sales*: [ ] Yesor No Services*: [ | Yesor No

*For purposes of this question, the term “retail sales” means (i) sales by a registered vendor under Article
28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York (the “Tax Law™) primarily engaged in the retail sale of tangible
personal property (as defined in Section 1101(b)(4)(i) of the Tax Law), or (ii) sales of a service to customers
who personally visit the Project.

G) Project Information:

Esti | . . ith Project:

1. Land and/or Building Acquisition; $ 0
acres square feet
2. NewBuilding Construction: square feet $ 0
3. NewBuilding Addition(s): square feet $ 0
4. Reconstruction/Renovation: square feet h) 0
5. Infrastructure Work: $__ 3.475.000
Solar Panels $1,255,000 of total Infrastructure Cost

6. Manufacturing Equipment: b 0
7. Non-Manufacturing Equipment (furniture, fixtures, etc.): $ 0
8. Soft Costs: (professional services, etc.): $ 300,000
9. Other,Specify: Development/permitting & interconnection 3 475.000
10. Other, Specify: Legal fees and inspection costs 5 90,000
11. Other, Specify:_ Construction labor $ 1.400.000
12. Other, Specify: Construction Interest and Insurance $ 150,000
13. Other, Specify:_Customer Acquisition b 270,000

TOTAL Capital Costs: $ 6.160,000



Project refinancing: estimated amount
(for refinancing of existing debt only) §_ NA

Sources of Funds for Project Costs:
1. Bank Financing; $_ 3.167.209
2. Equity (excluding equity that is attributed to grants/tax credits): $ __ 2.530.065
3. Tax Exempt Bond Issuance (if applicable): ;)
4. Taxable Bond Issuance (if applicable): $
5. Public Sources (Include sum total of all state and federal

grants and tax credits): b 462.726
Identify each state and federal grant/credit:
NYSERDA NY-SUN $ 462,726

Total Sources of Funds for Project Costs: $__6.160,000

Have any of the above costs been paid or incurred as of the date of this Application? Yes or [ ] No

If Yes, describe particulars:_Applicant has performed interconnection studies/deposits with the utility
($115.000) and various development work including site assessment report, Phase I Environmental
Report, surveys. civil plans, etc (approximately $75.000).

Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit: Amount of mortgage that would be subject to mortgage

recording tax:

Mortgage Amount (include sum total of construction/permanent): $ 3.167.209

Estimated Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit (product of Mortgage
Amount as indicated above multiplied by 1.25%): $ 39.590

Sales and Use Tax: Gross amount of costs for goods and services that are subject to State and local Sales
and Use Tax - said amount to benefit from the Agency’s Sales and Use Tax exemption benefit:

$3.475.000

Estimated State and local Sales and Use Tax Benefit (product of 8% multiplied by the figure above):

$278.000

** Note that the estimate provided above will be provided to the New York State Department of Taxation
and Finance. The Applicant acknowledges that the transaction documents may include a covenant by the
Applicant to undertake the total amount of investment as proposed within this Application, and that the
estimate, above, represents the maximum amount of sales and use tax benefit that the Agency may authorize
with respect to this Application. The Agency may wtilize the estimate, above, as well as the proposed total
Project Costs as contained within this Application, to determine the Financial Assistance that will be
offered.



Real Property Tax Benefit:

IDA PILOT Benefit: Agency staff will indicate the amount of PILOT Benefit based on estimated Project
Costs as contained herein and anticipated tax rates and assessed valuation, including the annual PILOT
Benefit abatement amount for each year of the PILOT benefit year and the sum total of PILOT Benefit
abatement amount for the term of the PILOT as depicted in Section IV of the Application.

Percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector sources: Agency staff will calculate the

percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector sources based upon Sources of Funds for Project
Costs as depicted above in Section 11(G) of the Application,

H) What is your Project timetable (provide dates):

1. Start date — acquisition of equipment or construction of facilities: November 2021

2. Estimated completion date of Project: May 2022

3. Project occupancy — estimated starting date of operations: _May 2022

4. Have construction contracts been signed? [_] Yes or [X] No (contract is prepared)

5. Has financing been finalized? [ ] Yes or [X] No (partners in place, documents to be finalized)

I) Have site plans been submitted to the appropriate planning department? Yes or[_] No

If yes, has the Project received site plan approval from the planning department? Yes or [] No

If yes, please provide the Agency with a copy of the related State Environmental Quality Review Act
(“SEQRA”) determination that may have been required to be submitted along with a copy of the
approved site plans. See Appendix A-1 for SEQOR Review

Please provide the Agency with the status of any required planning department or other approval:
Town Board has approved the project on 5/10/2021. See Appendix A-2 for 5/10/2021 Town of

Pulteney Planning Board Meeting Minutes.

J) Is the Project necessary to retain existing employment:

[ Yes or [X] No

Is the Project necessary to expand employment: [ Yes or Xl No
K) Employment Plan (Specific to the proposed Project location):
Current # of jobsat | IF FINANCIAL IF FINANCIAL Estimate number of

proposed project
location or to be
relocated to project

ASSISTANCE IS
GRANTED - project
the number of jobs to

ASSISTANCE IS
GRANTED - project
the number of jobs to

residents of the Labor
Market Area in which the
Project is located that will

location be RETAINED be CREATED upon fill the jobs to be created
THREE Yearsafter | upon THREE Years after
Project completion Project Completion*
Full Time 0 0 0 0
Part Time 0 0 0 0
Total FTEs 0 0 0 0

*For purposes of this question, please estimate the number of FT and PT jobs that will be filled, as indicated
in the third column, by residents of the Labor Marker Area, in the fourth column. The Labor Marker Area
includes Steuben, Schuyler, Chemung, Yates, Allegany, and Livingston Counties.



Salary and Fringe Benefits for Jobs to be Retained and/or Created:

Category of Jobs to be Retained] Average Salary or Range of Average Fringe Benefits or
and Created Salary Range of Fringe Benefits
Management N/A N/A
Professional N/A N/A
Administrative N/A N/A
Production N/A N/A
Independent Contractor N/A N/A
Other N/A N/A

Employment at other locations in the state: (provide address and number of employees at each location):

NY Pulteney I, LLC is a company specific to this project and has no employees currently.

Address Address Address
Full time 0
Part Time
Total FTEs 0

Please note: The Agency may utilize the foregoing employment projections, among other items, to
determine the Financial Assistance that will be offered by the Agency to the Applicant. The Applicant
acknowledges that the transaction documents may include a covenant by the Applicant to retain the number
of jobs and create the number of jobs with respect to the Project as set forth in this Application.




Section 111 Retail Questionnaire

To ensure compliance with Section 862 of the New York General Municipal Law, the Agency requires additional
information if the proposed Project is one where customers personally visit the Project site to undertake either a retail
sale transaction or to purchase services.

NOT APPLICABLE

Please answer the following:

A. Will any portion of the project (including that portion of the cost to be financed from equity or other
sources) consist of facilities or property that are or will be primarily used in making sales of goods
or services to customers who personally visit the project site?

[] Yes or [] No. If the answer is yes, please continue. If no, proceed to section IV.

For purposes of Question A, the term “retail sales” means (i) sales by a registered vendor under
Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York (the “Tax Law”) primarily engaged in the retail
sale of tangible personal property (as defined in Section 1101(b)(4)(i) of the Tax Law), or (ii) sales
of a service to customers who personally visit the Project.

B. What percentage of the cost of the Project will be expended on such facilities or property primarily
used in making sales of goods or services to customers who personally visit the project?
%. If the answer is less than 33% do not complete the remainder of the retail
determination and proceed to section IV.

If the answer to A is Yes AND the answer to Question B is greater than 33.33%, please answer
the questions below:

1. Will the project be operated by a not-for-profit corporation [} Yes or [ ] No.

2. Is the Project location or facility likely to attract a significant number of visitors from outside
the economic development region in which the project will be located? [] Yesor [] No

If yes, please provide a third-party market analysis or other documentation supporting your
response.

3. Is the predominant purpose of the project to make available goods or services which would not,
but for the project, be reasonably accessible to the residents of the municipality within which the
proposed project would be located because of a lack of reasonably accessible retail trade facilities
offering such goods or services? [ ] Yesor [ | No

If yes, please provide a third party market analysis or other documentation supporting your
response.

4. Will the project preserve permanent, private sector jobs or increase the overall number of
permanent, private sector jobs in the State of New York? [] Yesor [J No

If yes, explain

5. Is the project located in a Highly Distressed Area, as defined by the US Census Bureau?

(] Yesor[] No



Section 1V: Estimate of Real Property Tax Abatement Benefits and Percentage of Project Costs

financed from Public Sector sources

Section IV of this Application will be: (i) completed by IDA Staff based upon information contained
within the Application, and (ii) provided to the Applicant for ultimate inclusion as part of this
completed Application.

Estimates provided are based on current property tax rates and assessed values.

PILOT Estimate Table
Dollar Value of New Estimated New County Tax Local School Tax
Construction and Assessed Value of Rate/1,000 (town/village/city) Rate/1,000
Renovation Costs Property* Tax Rate/1,000

*Apply equalization rate to value

Abatement Current New Total Tax Proposed Total PILOT
Year Taxes Without Liability PILOT New | PILOT New Savings
PILOT + Existing
Total




Section V. Representations, Certifications and Indemnification

This Section of the Application can only be completed upon the Applicant receiving, and must be
completed after the Applicant receives, IDA Staff confirmation that Section I through Section IV of
the Application are complete.

Peter Dolgos (name of CEO or other authorized representative of Applicant)
confirms and says that he/she is  the_ Senior Vice President (title) of
NY Pulteney I, LLC (name of corporation or other entity) named in the attached

Application (the “Applicant™), that he/she has read the foregoing Application and knows the contents
thereof, and hereby represents, understands, and otherwise agrees with the Agency and as follows:

A Job Listings: In accordance with Section 858-b(2) of the New York General Municipal Law,
the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any Financial Assistance from
the Agency, except as otherwise provided by collective bargaining agreements, new
employment opportunities created as a result of the Project will be listed with the New York
State Department of Labor Community Services Division (the “DOL”) and with the
administrative entity (collectively with the DOL, the “JTPA Entities”) of the service delivery
area created by the federal job training partnership act (Public Law 97-300) (“JTPA”) in which
the Project is located.

B. First Consideration for Employment: In accordance with Section 858-b(2) of the New York
General Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any
Financial Assistance from the Agency, except as otherwise provided by collective bargaining
agreements, where practicable, the Applicant will first consider persons eligible to participate
in JTPA programs who shall be referred by the JTPA Entities for new employment
opportunities created as a result of the Project.

C. Annual Sales Tax Filings: In accordance with Section 874(8) of the New York General
Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any sales tax
exemptions as part of the Financial Assistance from the Agency, in accordance with Section
874(8) of the General Municipal Law, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be filed, with
the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance, the annual form prescribed by the
Department of Taxation and Finance, describing the value of all sales tax exemptions claimed
by the Applicant and all consultants or subcontractors retained by the Applicant. Copies of all
filings shall be provided to the Agency.

D. Employment Reports: The Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any
Financial Assistance from the Agency, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be filed, with
the Agency, at least annually or as otherwise required by the Agency, reports regarding the
number of people employed at the project site, salary levels, contractor utilization and such
other information (collectively, “Employment Reports™) that may be required from time to time
on such appropriate forms as designated by the Agency. Failure to provide Employment
Reports within 30 days of an Agency request shall be an Event of Default under the PILOT
Agreement between the Agency and Applicant and, if applicable, an Event of Default under
the Agent Agreement between the Agency and Applicant. In addition, a Notice of Failure to
provide the Agency with an Employment Report may be reported to Agency board members,
said report being an agenda item subject to the Open Meetings Law.



The Applicant acknowledges that certain environmental representations will be required at
closing. The Applicant shall provide with this Representation, Certification and
Indemnification Form copies of any known environmental reports, including any existing
Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment Report(s) and/or Phase [I Environmental
Investigations. The Agency may require the Company and/or owner of the premises to prepare
and submit an environmental assessment and audit report, including but not necessarily limited
to, a Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment Report and a Phase 1! Environmental
Investigation, with respect to the Premises at the sole cost and expense of the owner and/or the
Applicant. All environmental assessment and audit reports shall be completed in accordance
with ASTM Standard Practice E1527-05, and shal! be conformed over to the Agency so that
the Agency is authorized to use and rely on the reports. The Agency, however, does not adopt,
ratify, confirm or assume any representation made within reports required herein,

The Applicant and/or the owner, and their successors and assigns, hereby release, defend and
indemnify the Agency from any and all suits, causes of action, litigations, damages, losses,
liabilities, obligations, penalties, claims, demands, judgments, costs, disbursements, fees or
expenses of any kind or nature whatsoever (including, without limitation, attorneys’,
consultants’ and experts’ fees) which may at any time be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted
or awarded against the Agency, resulting from or arising out of any inquiries and/or
environmental assessments, investigations and audits performed on behalf of the Applicant
and/or the owner pursuant hereto, including the scope, level of detail, contents or accuracy of
any environmental assessment, audit, inspection or investigation report completed hereunder
and/or the selection of the environmental consultant, engineer or other qualified person to
perform such assessments, investigations, and audits.

Hold Harmless Provision: The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that the Applicant shall be
and is responsible for all costs of the Agency incurred in connection with any actions required
to be taken by the Agency in furtherance of the Application including the Agency’s costs of
general counsel and/or the Agency’s bond/transaction counsel whether or not the Application,
the proposed Project it describes, the attendant negotiations, or the issue of bonds or other
transaction or agreement are ultimately ever carried to successful conclusion and agrees that
the Agency shall not be liable for and agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the Agency
harmless from and against any and all liability arising from or expense incurred by: (i) the
Agency's examination and processing of, and action pursuant to or upon, the Application,
regardless of whether or not the Application or the proposed Project described herein or the tax
exemptions and other assistance requested herein are favorably acted upon by the Agency; (ii)
the Agency's acquisition, construction and/or installation of the proposed Project described
herein; and (iii) any further action taken by the Agency with respect to the proposed Project
including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all causes of action and attorney's
fees and any other expenses incurred in defending any suits or actions which may arise as a
result of any of the foregoing. Applicant hereby understands and agrees, in accordance with
Section 875(3) of the New York General Municipal Law and the policies of the Agency that
any New York State and local sales and use tax exemption claimed by the Applicant and
approved by the Agency, any mortgage recording tax exemption claimed by the Applicant and
approved by the Agency, and/or any real property tax abatement claimed by the Applicant and
approved by the Agency, in connection with the Project, may be subject to recapture and/or
termination by the Agency under such terms and conditions as will be established by the
Agency and set forth in transaction documents to be entered into by and between the Agency
and the Applicant. The Applicant further represents and warrants that the information contained
in this Application, including without limitation information regarding the amount of the New
York State and local sales and use tax exemption benefit, the amount of the mortgage recording



tax exemption benefit, and the amount of the real property tax abatement, if and as applicable,
to the best of the Applicant’s knowledge, is true, accurate and complete.

This obligation includes an obligation to submit an Agency Fee Payment to the Agency in
accordance with the Agency Fee policy effective as of the date of this Application

By executing and submitting this Application, the Applicant covenants and agrees to pay the
following fees to the Agency and the Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s
bond/transaction counsel, the same to be paid at the times indicated:

(i) a non-refundable $750 application and publication fee (the “Application Fee”);

(ii) an amount equal to one percent (1%) of the total project costs, unless otherwise
agreed to by the Agency; and

(ili)  all fees, costs and expenses incurred by the Agency for (1) legal services, including but not
limited to those provided by the Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s bond/transaction
counsel, thus note that the Applicant is entitled to receive a written estimate of fees and costs of the
Agency’s general counsel and the Agency’s bond/transaction counsel; and (2) other consultants
retained by the Agency in connection with the proposed project, with all such charges to be paid by the
Applicant at the closing.

If the Applicant fails to conclude or consummate the necessary negotiations, or fails, within a
reasonable or specified period of time, to take reasonable proper or requested action, or
withdraws, abandons, cancels, or neglects the Application, or if the Applicant is unable to find
buyers willing to purchase the bond issue requested, or if the Applicant is unable to facilitate
the sale/leaseback or lease/leaseback transaction, then, upon the presentation of an invoice,
Applicant shall pay to the Agency, its agents, or assigns all actual costs incurred by the Agency
in furtherance of the Application, up to that date and time, including but not necessarily limited
to, fees of the Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s bond/transaction counsel.

The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that all payment liabilities to the Agency and the
Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s bond and/or transaction counsel as expressed in
Sections H and | are obligations that are not dependent on final documentation of the
transaction contemplated by this Application.

The cost incurred by the Agency and paid by the Applicant, the Agency’s general counsel
and/or bond/transaction counsel fees and the processing fees, may be considered as a cost of
the Project and included in the financing of costs of the proposed Project, except as limited by
the applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code with respect to tax-exempt bond
financing.

The Applicant acknowledges that the Agency is subject to New York State’s Freedom of

Information Law (FOIL). Applicant understands that all Project information and records
related to this application are potentially subject to disclosure under FOIL subject to
limited lusions,

The Applicant acknowledges that it has been provided with a copy of the Agency’s Policy for
Termination of Agency Benefits and Recapture of Agency Benefits Previously Granted (the
“Termination and Recapture Policy”). The Applicant covenants and agrees that it fully
understands that the Termination and Recapture Policy is applicable to the Project that is the
subject of this Application, and that the Agency will implement the Termination and Recapture



Policy if and when it is so required to do so. The Applicant further covenants and agrees that
its Project is potentially subject to termination of Agency financial assistance and/or recapture
of Agency financial assistance so provided and/or previously granted.

The Applicant understands and agrees that the provisions of Section 862(1) of the New York
General Municipal Law, as provided below, will not be violated if Financial Assistance is
provided for the proposed Project:

§ 862. Restrictions on funds of the agency. (1) No funds of the agency shall be used in
respect of any project if the completion thereof would result in the removal of an industrial or
manufacturing plant of the project occupant from one area of the state to another area of the
state or in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the project occupant located
within the state, provided, however, that neither restriction shall apply if the agency shall
determine on the basis of the application before it that the project is reasonably necessary to
discourage the project occupant from removing such other plant or facility to a location
outside the state or is reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the project
occupant in its respective industry.

The Applicant confirms and acknowledges that the owner, occupant, or operator receiving
Financial Assistance for the proposed Project is in substantial compliance with applicable local,
state and federal tax, worker protection and environmental laws, rules and regulations.

The Applicant confirms and acknowledges that the submission of any knowingly false or
knowingly misleading information may lead to the immediate termination of any Financial
Assistance and the reimbursement of an amount equal to all or part of any tax exemption
claimed by reason of the Agency’s involvement the Project.

The Applicant confirms and hereby acknowledges that as of the date of this Application, the
Applicant is in substantial compliance with all provisions of Article 18-A of the New York
General Municipal Law, including, but not limited to, the provision of Section 859-a and
Section 862(1) of the New York General Municipal Law.

The Applicant and the individual executing this Application on behalf of Applicant
acknowledge that the Agency and its counsel will rely on the representations and covenants
made in this Application when acting hereon and hereby represents that the statements made
herein do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact and do not omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements contained herein not misleading,



STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF New Yocl& )ss:

%@n 0LGOS being first duly sworn, deposes and says:

I. That I am the_ <5 \/T\> (Corporate Office) of LY p‘-&l‘kcf\fl_{ L, LLc
(Applicant) and that | am duly authorized on behalf of the Applicant to bind the Aﬂplicant.

2. That I have read the attached Application, | know the contents thereof, and that to the best of
my knowledge and belief, this Application and the contents of this Application are true,
accurate and complete.

(Signature of OfﬁcerD

Subscribed and affirmed to me under penalties of perjury

this | [Pday of , 20%

>~ (Notary Public)

; N
R‘CHARD V\{é%n‘ljew York

\ic, Sta
Notary 5‘6‘?020%116187

ty
od in Nassau Coun
Com%;:g&m Expires Seot. 20, 2024



Delaware River Solar
Steuben County IDA PILOT Assessment - Estimated

Chidsey Road, Pulteney

Pulteney Tax Rate/$1,000
County Tax Rate/$1,000

School District Tax Rate/$1,000

Total Tax Rate/$1000

Per MW PILOT Rate
Rated Megawatts

Total PILOT payment over 20 years

$3.39
$5.47

$10.09
$18.95

95% Equalization
$3.22
$5.20

$9.59
$18.00

$5,500.00 plus 2% annually

3
$417,104

Distribution Rate
17.89%
28.87%
53.25%

County Payment

Taxes on 23 Total PILOT Town Payment w/ School Payment w/ | Total Taxes w/ PILOT
Abatement Year acres of land Payment PILOT and 23 acres w/ P”;Oc:eind 23 PILOT and 23 acres and 23 acres

Year 1 S667 $16,500 $3,071 $4,955 $9,140 $17,167
Year 2 $680 $16,830 $3,132 $5,054 $9,323 $17,510
Year 3 $694 $17,167 $3,195 $5,155 $9,510 $17,860
Year 4 $707 $17,510 $3,259 $5,259 $9,700 $18,217
Year 5 $722 $17,860 $3,324 S5,364 $9,894 $18,582
Year 6 $736 $18,217 $3,391 $5,471 $10,092 $18,953
Year 7 $751 $18,582 $3,458 $5,580 $10,294 $19,332
Year 8 $766 $18,953 $3,528 $5,692 $10,499 $19,719
Year 9 $781 $19,332 $3,598 $5,806 $10,709 $20,113
Year 10 $797 $19,719 $3,670 $5,922 $10,924 $20,516
Year 11 $813 $20,113 $3,743 $6,040 $11,142 $20,926
Year 12 $829 $20,516 $3,818 $6,161 $11,365 $21,345
Year 13 $845 $20,926 $3,895 $6,284 $11,592 $21,771
Year 14 $862 $21,345 $3,973 $6,410 $11,824 $22,207
Year 15 $880 $21,771 $4,052 $6,538 $12,061 $22,651
Year 16 $897 $22,207 $4,133 $6,669 $12,302 $23,104
Year 17 $915 $22,651 $4,216 $6,802 $12,548 $23,566
Year 18 $933 $23,104 $4,300 $6,939 $12,799 $24,037
Year 19 $952 $23,566 $4,386 $7,077 $13,055 $24,518
Year 20 $971 $24,037 $S4,474 $7,219 $13,316 $25,009
$16,197 $400,907 $74,616 $120,399 $222,089 $417,104




Of 1114041 NY Fuliteney i, LLG | LOSL Benerit Analysis | Inform Anaiyucs | Fowerea ny Lo

Cost-Benefit Analysis for NY Pulteney |, LLC

Prepared by Steuben County IDA using InformAnalytics

htne/inv infarmanaldice aralrhalrannrtiR2R

18



[ TARArAVA NY runeney 1, LLL | LOST Benert Analysis | INTorm Analyucs | rowereg py LLoK

Executive Summary

INVESTOR TOTAL JOBS TOTAL INVESTED LOCATION TIMELINE
NY Pulteney |, 0 Opgaing; $6.2 Millien 8897 Chidsey Hill 20 Years
bLC 36 Temporary Road, Pulteney,
NY
B ricures

Discounted* Mgt Benefits far NY Pujteney |, HLE Ry Year Total Net Benefits: $1,467,000

3M

2M

™

0

-1M
g S @ R @ e & & @ L @ L @ L @ R @ 7;9-\% ’5‘\0@ 'é\\_\e é\’:@ "’&\’1@ @:@ ’é\%& é\b‘\@(\*@\%&é\q&é@

* Benefits @ Costs <O- Net Benefits

Discounted at 2%

) ricure2 BE] ricures
Tetalinks Tata! Pavrall
Temporary Temporary
Ongoing

Ongoing
0 1 2
0 20 40 Millions of Dollars
* Direct @ Spillover “ Direct @ Spillover

httne-linvinfarmanalhdice arnichalranart/RR 2R



O/ 1114041 NY runeney I, LLC | LOSL Benernt Analysis | INTorm Analyucs | Fowerea oy VoK

Proposed Investment

NY Pulteney |, LLC proposes to invest $6.2 million at 8897 Chidsey Hill Road, Pulteney, NY over 20 years. Steuben County
IDA staff summarize the proposed with the following: NY Pulteney |, LLC is the subsidiary under Delaware River Solar, LLC
that will build, own and operate a 3 MW community solar farm at 8897 Chidsey Hill Road in the Town of Pulteney.
Approximately 23 acres of the 68-acre parcel will be leased for the project. The land sits as vacant farmland now. Electricity
will be sold under the community solar model, whereby local residents who live in NYSEG's territory will be given the
option to purchase it to save on their electricity bills.

Tl TABLE 1 ) Ficure 4

Propesed Investments Feration of Inveskment

ARTOLINT

COMSTRUETIONSPENRING

NY Pulteney | $3,620,000
ATHER SRENBING '

Solar Panels $1,255,000

Permitting and

Interconnection Se S 000

Soft Costs $810,000 : ' ¥ 4%

Gm ' *9'4; RMap data ©2021

Piscannred Torgl (20 $6.160.080

May not sum to total due to rounding.

hittne /inv infarmanahdice arn/rhalrannrt/R2R iR



Ol 1114041 NY ruiteney |, LLL | LOST Benent Analysis | INTOrm ANalyucs | Fowerea by LLIK

=] & % > » fad ] ". i ] “
Cost-Benefit Analysis
A cost-benefit analysis of this proposed investment was conducted using InformAnalytics, an economic impact model
developed by CGR. The report estimates the impact that a potential project will have on the local economy based on
information provided by Steuben County IDA. The report calculates the costs and benefits for specified local taxing districts
over the first 20 years, with future returns discounted at a 2% rate.

BEl TaBLeE2

Estimated Costs oF Inepptives
Steuben County IDA is considering the following incentive package for NY Pulteney |, LLC.

Discaunted value!

Property Tax Exemption $336,000 $285,000

Sales Tax Exemption $278,000 $278,000
Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption $40,000 $40,000
Total Costs $654,000 $602,000

May not sum to total due to rounding.
* Discounted at 2%

httne-linvinfarmanaldice nrn/rhalrannrt/RRQ AlR



OT1LUL ] NY trunteney I, LLL | LOST Benent Analysis | InNTorm Anaiyucs | Fowerea by Lo

| TABLE3

State & Regignal Impact (Life of Rraject)
The following table estimates the total benefits from the project over its lifetime.

Dascipuon Direct Spillaves

REGIONAL BENEFITS $1.439,000 $427.000 $1,866.000

To Private Individuals $1,335,000 $422,000 $1,757,000
Temporary Payroll $1,335,000 $422,000 $1,757,000

To the Public $104,000 $5,000 $108,000
Temporary Sales Tax $15,000 $5,000 $19,000
Revenue

Purchases Sales Tax

$89,000 N/A $89,000
Revenue
STATE BENEFITS $1784% #2000 12000
To the Public $178,000 $26,000 $204,000
Temporary Income
Tax Revenue $60,000 $20,000 $80,000
BIGTIEA $17,000 $5,000 $22,000
Revenue
Purchases Sales Tax $102,000 N/A $102,000

Revenue

Total Benefits to State &
Region

$1,617,000 $453,000 $2,070,000

B ReteA Tt el $1.61789 HEL99 $2070009

May not sum to total due to rounding.

httne lirmi infarmanaldice Arnichalranart/R2A RiR



[TRNFTAVrY] NY Fuieney I, LLL | LOST Benemnt Analysis | Intform Analyucs | rowerea oy Lo

Bl TABLE 4

Benefit to Cost Ratio
The following benefit to cost ratios were calculated using the discounted totals.

Descriptian Benefitt Ralio

Region $1,866,000 $438,000 4:1

State $204,000 $164,000 11

Grand Total $2,070,000 $602,000

May not sum to total due to rounding.
* Discounted at 2%

CGR has exercised reasonable professional care and diligence in the production and design of the InformAnalytics™ tool. However, the data used is provided by
users. InformAnalytics does not independently verify, validate or audit the data supplied by users. CGR makes no representations or warranties with respect to the

accuracy of the data supplied by users.

RIR

httne-linv infarmanaltice arnlehalranart/QR



Full Environmental Assessment Form
Part 1 - Project and Setting

Instructions for Completing Part 1

Part 1 is to be completed by the applicant or project sponsor. Responses become part of the application for approval or funding,
are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification.

Complete Part 1 based on information currently available. If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to
any item, please answer as thoroughly as possible based on current information; indicate whether missing information does not exist,
or is not reasonably available to the sponsor; and, when possible, generally describe work or studies which would be necessary to
update or fully develop that information.

Applicants/sponsors must complete all items in Sections A & B. In Sections C, D & E, most items contain an initial question that
must be answered either “Yes” or “No”. If the answer to the initial question is “Yes”, complete the sub-questions that follow. If the
answer to the initial question is “No”, proceed to the next question. Section F allows the project sponsor to identify and attach any
additional information. Section G requires the name and signature of the applicant or project sponsor to verify that the information
contained in Part 1is accurate and complete.

A. Project and Applicant/Sponsor Information.

Name of Action or Project:
NY Pulteney I, LLC - Chidsey Hill Road Solar Farm Project

Project Location (describe, and attach a general location map):
The proposed project is located off of Chidsey Hill Road, in the Town of Pulteney, Steuben County, New York (refer to Figure 1, Site Location Map).

Brief Description of Proposed Action (include purpose or need):

The proposed Project consists of a 5.0 MW solar farm on approximately + 35.2 acres of a 68.10 acre parcel (Parcel ID: 012.00-01-008.200). It will involve
the installation of ground mounted photovoltaic panels as well as associated access road, electric utility upgrades, power inverters and perimeter fencing
for the solar farm.

Name of Applicant/Sponsor: Telephone: (646) 998-6495
NY Pulteney |, LLC c/o Peter Dolgos -Mail:
y g E-Mail: peter.dolgos@delawareriversolar.com
Address: 140 East 45th Street, Suite 32B-1
City/PO: New York State: New York Zip Code: 10017
Project Contact (if not same as sponsor; give name and title/role): Telephone: 507y 333-3120
Bergmann Associates c/o Robert Switala E-Mail: rswitala@bergmannpc.com
Address:
2665 Corning Road
City/PO: State: Zip Code:
Horsheads New York 14845
Property Owner (if not same as sponsor): Telephone: nja
Joann Peterson E-Mail: y/a
Address:
1850 Upper Briggs Hollow
City/PO: State: Zip Code:
y Nichols New York P 13812

Page 1 of 13



http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91625.html

B. Government Approvals

B. Government Approvals, Funding, or Sponsorship. (“Funding” includes grants, loans, tax relief, and any other forms of financial

assistance.)

Government Entity If Yes: Identify Agency and Approval(s) Application Date
Required (Actual or projected)

a. City Counsel, Town Board, [JYes[IINo

or Village Board of Trustees
b. City, TOWH or Village o [OYesCONO | Town of Pulteney Planning Board - Special Use ~ |12/28/2020

Planning Board or Commission Permit & Site Plan Approval
c. City, Town or CYes[ONo

Village Zoning Board of Appeals
d. Other local agencies YesOINo
e. County agencies [OYes[ONo  |steuben County Planning Dept. GML239 Referral
f. Regional agencies [JYesONo
g. State agencies [OYes[ONo  [NYSDEC, SHPO-Sign Off, NYSERDA, NYSDAM
h. Federal agencies [Yes[JNo USACE NWP 12, 14 and/or 51 & USFWS

consultation

i. Coastal Resources.

i. Isthe project site within a Coastal Area, or the waterfront area of a Designated Inland Waterway? CYes[No
ii. Is the project site located in a community with an approved Local Waterfront Revitalization Program? O YesINo
iii. Is the project site within a Coastal Erosion Hazard Area? [ Yes[dINo
C. Planning and Zoning
C.1. Planning and zoning actions.
Will administrative or legislative adoption, or amendment of a plan, local law, ordinance, rule or regulation be the [JYes[IINo
only approval(s) which must be granted to enable the proposed action to proceed?
e If Yes, complete sections C, F and G.
e If No, proceed to question C.2 and complete all remaining sections and questions in Part 1
C.2. Adopted land use plans.
a. Do any municipally- adopted (city, town, village or county) comprehensive land use plan(s) include the site [DYesCINo
where the proposed action would be located?
If Yes, does the comprehensive plan include specific recommendations for the site where the proposed action [DYesINo
would be located?
b. Is the site of the proposed action within any local or regional special planning district (for example: Greenway; CYes[dNo
Brownfield Opportunity Area (BOA); designated State or Federal heritage area; watershed management plan;
or other?)
If Yes, identify the plan(s):
c. Is the proposed action located wholly or partially within an area listed in an adopted municipal open space plan, [JYes[dINo

or an adopted municipal farmland protection plan?
If Yes, identify the plan(s):

Page 2 of 13



http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91635.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91640.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91630.html

C.3. Zoning

a. Is the site of the proposed action located in a municipality with an adopted zoning law or ordinance. [dYes[INo
If Yes, what is the zoning classification(s) including any applicable overlay district?
Residential 1 (R-1), 105 - Vac farmland, Zoning code 3

b. Is the use permitted or allowed by a special or conditional use permit? [0 YesINo
¢. Is a zoning change requested as part of the proposed action? O YesINo
If Yes,

i. What is the proposed new zoning for the site?

C.4. Existing community services.

a. In what school district is the project site located? Hammondsport Central School District

b. What police or other public protection forces serve the project site?
Steuben County Sheriff Department

¢. Which fire protection and emergency medical services serve the project site?
Pulteney Fire Company and Pulteney Volunteer Ambulance

d. What parks serve the project site?
Keuka Lake State Park

D. Project Details

D.1. Proposed and Potential Development

a. What is the general nature of the proposed action (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial, recreational; if mixed, include all
components)? Community Solar Farm

b. a. Total acreage of the site of the proposed action? +35.2 acres
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed? +35.2 acres
c. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned
or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor? +95.4 acres
c. Is the proposed action an expansion of an existing project or use? [ Yes[dINo
i. If Yes, what is the approximate percentage of the proposed expansion and identify the units (e.g., acres, miles, housing units,
square feet)? % Units:
d. Is the proposed action a subdivision, or does it include a subdivision? [CYes[No
If Yes,
i. Purpose or type of subdivision? (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial; if mixed, specify types)
ii. Is a cluster/conservation layout proposed? CJYyes[No
iii. Number of lots proposed?
iv. Minimum and maximum proposed lot sizes? Minimum Maximum
e. Will the proposed action be constructed in multiple phases? JYes[ONo
i. If No, anticipated period of construction: months
ii. 1f Yes:
e  Total number of phases anticipated
e Anticipated commencement date of phase 1 (including demolition) month year
e Anticipated completion date of final phase month year
[ ]

Generally describe connections or relationships among phases, including any contingencies where progress of one phase may
determine timing or duration of future phases:

Page 3 of 13



http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91645.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91650.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91655.html

f. Does the project include new residential uses? YesINo
If Yes, show numbers of units proposed.

One Family Two Family Three Family Multiple Family (four or more)

Initial Phase
At completion

of all phases
g. Does the proposed action include new non-residential construction (including expansions)? OYes[OINo
If Yes,

i. Total number of structures N/A

ii. Dimensions (in feet) of largest proposed structure: N/A height; N/A width; and N/A length
iii. Approximate extent of building space to be heated or cooled: N/A Square feet
h. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that will result in the impoundment of any [IYesONo

liquids, such as creation of a water supply, reservoir, pond, lake, waste lagoon or other storage?

If Yes,

i. Purpose of the impoundment:
ii. If a water impoundment, the principal source of the water: [] Ground water [] Surface water streams [_]Other specify:

iii. If other than water, identify the type of impounded/contained liquids and their source.

iv. Approximate size of the proposed impoundment. Volume: million gallons; surface area: acres
v. Dimensions of the proposed dam or impounding structure: height; length
vi. Construction method/materials for the proposed dam or impounding structure (e.g., earth fill, rock, wood, concrete):

D.2. Project Operations

a. Does the proposed action include any excavation, mining, or dredging, during construction, operations, or both? [ ]Yes[d]JNo
(Not including general site preparation, grading or installation of utilities or foundations where all excavated
materials will remain onsite)
If Yes:
i What is the purpose of the excavation or dredging?
ii. How much material (including rock, earth, sediments, etc.) is proposed to be removed from the site?
e Volume (specify tons or cubic yards):
e  Over what duration of time?
iii. Describe nature and characteristics of materials to be excavated or dredged, and plans to use, manage or dispose of them.

iv. Will there be onsite dewatering or processing of excavated materials? [JYes[ JNo
If yes, describe.

v. What is the total area to be dredged or excavated? acres
vi. What is the maximum area to be worked at any one time? acres
vii. What would be the maximum depth of excavation or dredging? feet
viii. Will the excavation require blasting? [Jyes[JNo

ix. Summarize site reclamation goals and plan:

b. Would the proposed action cause or result in alteration of, increase or decrease in size of, or encroachment [O]Yes[ ]No
into any existing wetland, waterbody, shoreline, beach or adjacent area?
If Yes:
i. Identify the wetland or waterbody which would be affected (by name, water index number, wetland map number or geographic
description): The limited use pervious gravel access road will cross an intermittent, unclassified stream on site.

Page 4 of 13



http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91660.html

ii. Describe how the proposed action would affect that waterbody or wetland, e.g. excavation, fill, placement of structures, or
alteration of channels, banks and shorelines. Indicate extent of activities, alterations and additions in square feet or acres:

The unclassified intermittent stream will be temporarily disturbed to construct the limited use gravel access road. Post-construction
the stream will be restored, and a culvert is proposed to ensure the existing hydrology of the stream is unchanged.

iii. Will the proposed action cause or result in disturbance to bottom sediments? OYes[ONo
If Yes, describe:

iv. Will the proposed action cause or result in the destruction or removal of aquatic vegetation? [JYesONo
If Yes:

e acres of aquatic vegetation proposed to be removed:
e expected acreage of aquatic vegetation remaining after project completion:
e purpose of proposed removal (e.g. beach clearing, invasive species control, boat access):

e proposed method of plant removal:
o if chemical/herbicide treatment will be used, specify product(s):
v. Describe any proposed reclamation/mitigation following disturbance:
Following disturbance, the stream will be restored and the proposed culvert will restore the existing hydrology of the stream.

c. Will the proposed action use, or create a new demand for water? [JYes[ONo
If Yes:
i. Total anticipated water usage/demand per day: gallons/day
ii. Will the proposed action obtain water from an existing public water supply? [JYes[INo
If Yes:
e Name of district or service area:
e Does the existing public water supply have capacity to serve the proposal? [JYes[INo
e Is the project site in the existing district? JYes[JNo
e Is expansion of the district needed? O Yes[CINo
e Do existing lines serve the project site? O YesCINo
iii. Will line extension within an existing district be necessary to supply the project? CIyes[INo
If Yes:

e Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project:

e  Source(s) of supply for the district:

iv. Is a new water supply district or service area proposed to be formed to serve the project site? 3 Yes[JNo
If, Yes:

e Applicant/sponsor for new district:

e Date application submitted or anticipated:

e  Proposed source(s) of supply for new district:
v. If a public water supply will not be used, describe plans to provide water supply for the project:

vi. If water supply will be from wells (public or private), what is the maximum pumping capacity: gallons/minute.
d. Will the proposed action generate liquid wastes? OYes[No
If Yes:

i. Total anticipated liquid waste generation per day: gallons/day

ii. Nature of liquid wastes to be generated (e.g., sanitary wastewater, industrial; if combination, describe all components and
approximate volumes or proportions of each):

iii. Will the proposed action use any existing public wastewater treatment facilities? [JYes[INo
If Yes:

e  Name of wastewater treatment plant to be used:

e  Name of district:

e  Does the existing wastewater treatment plant have capacity to serve the project? [JYes[CINo
e Isthe project site in the existing district? [JYes[INo
e Isexpansion of the district needed? [JYes[CINo

Page 5 of 13




e Do existing sewer lines serve the project site? [Yes[INo
e Will a line extension within an existing district be necessary to serve the project? [Yes[INo
If Yes:
e Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project:

iv. Will a new wastewater (sewage) treatment district be formed to serve the project site? Yes[INo
If Yes:
e Applicant/sponsor for new district:
e  Date application submitted or anticipated:
. What is the receiving water for the wastewater discharge?
v. If public facilities will not be used, describe plans to provide wastewater treatment for the project, including specifying proposed
receiving water (name and classification if surface discharge or describe subsurface disposal plans):

vi. Describe any plans or designs to capture, recycle or reuse liquid waste:

e. Will the proposed action disturb more than one acre and create stormwater runoff, either from new point OYes[INo
sources (i.e. ditches, pipes, swales, curbs, gutters or other concentrated flows of stormwater) or non-point
source (i.e. sheet flow) during construction or post construction?
If Yes:
i. How much impervious surface will the project create in relation to total size of project parcel?
Square feet or _ 0.50 acres (impervious surface)
Square feet or __sg.1 acres (parcel size)
ii. Describe types of new point sources. N/A, no new point sources are proposed.

iii. Where will the stormwater runoff be directed (i.e. on-site stormwater management facility/structures, adjacent properties,
groundwater, on-site surface water or off-site surface waters)?

e I to surface waters, identify receiving water bodies or wetlands:

e  Will stormwater runoff flow to adjacent properties? YesONo
iv. Does the proposed plan minimize impervious surfaces, use pervious materials or collect and re-use stormwater? [ Yes[] No
f. Does the proposed action include, or will it use on-site, one or more sources of air emissions, including fuel [IYesONo
combustion, waste incineration, or other processes or operations?
If Yes, identify:

i. Mobile sources during project operations (e.g., heavy equipment, fleet or delivery vehicles)

ii. Stationary sources during construction (e.g., power generation, structural heating, batch plant, crushers)

iii. Stationary sources during operations (e.g., process emissions, large boilers, electric generation)

g. Will any air emission sources named in D.2.f (above), require a NY State Air Registration, Air Facility Permit,  []Yes[INo
or Federal Clean Air Act Title IV or Title V Permit?

If Yes:

i. Is the project site located in an Air quality non-attainment area? (Area routinely or periodically fails to meet Oyes[CINo
ambient air quality standards for all or some parts of the year)

ii. In addition to emissions as calculated in the application, the project will generate:

Tons/year (short tons) of Carbon Dioxide (CO,)

Tons/year (short tons) of Nitrous Oxide (N,O)

Tons/year (short tons) of Perfluorocarbons (PFCs)

Tons/year (short tons) of Sulfur Hexafluoride (SFg)

Tons/year (short tons) of Carbon Dioxide equivalent of Hydroflourocarbons (HFCs)

Tons/year (short tons) of Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPS)

Page 6 of 13




h. Will the proposed action generate or emit methane (including, but not limited to, sewage treatment plants, [CyesOINo
landfills, composting facilities)?
If Yes:
i. Estimate methane generation in tons/year (metric):

ii. Describe any methane capture, control or elimination measures included in project design (e.g., combustion to generate heat or
electricity, flaring):

i. Will the proposed action result in the release of air pollutants from open-air operations or processes, such as [JYesOINo
quarry or landfill operations?
If Yes: Describe operations and nature of emissions (e.g., diesel exhaust, rock particulates/dust):

j- Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels or generate substantial [JYesO]No
new demand for transportation facilities or services?
If Yes:

i. When is the peak traffic expected (Check all that apply): [ Morning [J Evening [Oweekend
[ Randomly between hours of to .
ii. For commercial activities only, projected number of truck trips/day and type (e.g., semi trailers and dump trucks):

iii. Parking spaces: ~ Existing Proposed Net increase/decrease

iv. Does the proposed action include any shared use parking? Cyes[CINo
V. If the proposed action includes any modification of existing roads, creation of new roads or change in existing access, describe:

vi. Are public/private transportation service(s) or facilities available within % mile of the proposed site? [JYes[JNo

vii Will the proposed action include access to public transportation or accommodations for use of hybrid, electric ~ [JYes[ ]No
or other alternative fueled vehicles?

viii. Will the proposed action include plans for pedestrian or bicycle accommodations for connections to existing [Jyes[INo
pedestrian or bicycle routes?

k. Will the proposed action (for commercial or industrial projects only) generate new or additional demand [CJYesOdINo
for energy?
If Yes:
i. Estimate annual electricity demand during operation of the proposed action:

ii. Anticipated sources/suppliers of electricity for the project (e.g., on-site combustion, on-site renewable, via grid/local utility, or
other):

iii. Will the proposed action require a new, or an upgrade, to an existing substation? [Jyes[INo

I. Hours of operation. Answer all items which apply.

i. During Construction: ii. During Operations:
e Monday - Friday: 8 AM -6 PM e  Monday - Friday: N/A
e  Saturday: 8 AM -6 PM e  Saturday: N/A
e Sunday: N/A e  Sunday: N/A
e Holidays: N/A e  Holidays: N/A

Page 7 of 13




m. Will the proposed action produce noise that will exceed existing ambient noise levels during construction, 0 YesCINo
operation, or both?

If yes:

i. Provide details including sources, time of day and duration:

Noise levels will increase during construction due to construction equipment during the hours of 8:00 a.m. - 6:00 p.m. Monday through Saturday.

ii. Will the proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a noise barrier or screen? OYyesCINo
Describe:

n. Will the proposed action have outdoor lighting? OYes[No

If yes:

i. Describe source(s), location(s), height of fixture(s), direction/aim, and proximity to nearest occupied structures:

ii. Will proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a light barrier or screen? OyesCINo
Describe:
0. Does the proposed action have the potential to produce odors for more than one hour per day? dYesONo

If Yes, describe possible sources, potential frequency and duration of odor emissions, and proximity to nearest
occupied structures:

p. Will the proposed action include any bulk storage of petroleum (combined capacity of over 1,100 gallons) OYesONo
or chemical products 185 gallons in above ground storage or any amount in underground storage?
If Yes:
i. Product(s) to be stored

ii. Volume(s) per unit time (e.g., month, year)
iii. Generally, describe the proposed storage facilities:

g. Will the proposed action (commercial, industrial and recreational projects only) use pesticides (i.e., herbicides, O Yes [INo
insecticides) during construction or operation?

If Yes:
i. Describe proposed treatment(s):

ii. Will the proposed action use Integrated Pest Management Practices? [ Yes [ONo

r. Will the proposed action (commercial or industrial projects only) involve or require the management or disposal [ Yes [INo
of solid waste (excluding hazardous materials)?

If Yes:
i. Describe any solid waste(s) to be generated during construction or operation of the facility:
e  Construction: 0.1 tons per month (unit of time)
e  Operation : N/A tons per N/A (unit of time)

ii. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of materials to avoid disposal as solid waste:
e  Construction: Waste will consist of office waste and cardboard items from deliveries. Most of the waste will be recyclable.

e Operation: __N/A

iii. Proposed disposal methods/facilities for solid waste generated on-site:
e  Construction: A refuse container will remain on site during construction and be emptied by a licensed hauler as needed.

e Operation: _ N/A

Page 8 of 13




s. Does the proposed action include construction or modification of a solid waste management facility? [ Yes[O No
If Yes:
i. Type of management or handling of waste proposed for the site (e.g., recycling or transfer station, composting, landfill, or
other disposal activities):

ii. Anticipated rate of disposal/processing:

. Tons/montbh, if transfer or other non-combustion/thermal treatment, or
. Tons/hour, if combustion or thermal treatment
iii. If landfill, anticipated site life: years

t. Will the proposed action at the site involve the commercial generation, treatment, storage, or disposal of hazardous []Yes[dNo
waste?

If Yes:
i. Name(s) of all hazardous wastes or constituents to be generated, handled or managed at facility:

ii. Generally describe processes or activities involving hazardous wastes or constituents:

iii. Specify amount to be handled or generated tons/month
iv. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of hazardous constituents:

v. Will any hazardous wastes be disposed at an existing offsite hazardous waste facility? LIYes[INo
If Yes: provide name and location of facility:

If No: describe proposed management of any hazardous wastes which will not be sent to a hazardous waste facility:

E. Site and Setting of Proposed Action

E.1. Land uses on and surrounding the project site

a. Existing land uses.
i. Check all uses that occur on, adjoining and near the project site.
[ urban [J Industrial [] Commercial [] Residential (suburban) [] Rural (non-farm)
Forest Agriculture [] Aquatic [1 Other (specify):
ii. If mix of uses, generally describe:

b. Land uses and covertypes on the project site.

Land use or Current Acreage After Change
Covertype Acreage Project Completion (Acres +/-)
e Roads, buildings, and other paved or impervious
surfaces N/A
o Forested +24.8 £22.8 -2.0
e Meadows, grasslands or brushlands (non-
. . . . N/A
agricultural, including abandoned agricultural)
D /-_\grlcultural _ _ +43.6 +8.4 -35.2
(includes active orchards, field, greenhouse etc.)
e  Surface water features
. +0.08 £0.08 -0.0
(lakes, ponds, streams, rivers, etc.)
e  Wetlands (freshwater or tidal) N/A
e Non-vegetated (bare rock, earth or fill) N/A
e  Other
Describe: Grassy area/ solar panels 0 +35.2 +35.2

Page 9 of 13



http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91665.html

c. Is the project site presently used by members of the community for public recreation? OyesCINo
i. If Yes: explain:

d. Are there any facilities serving children, the elderly, people with disabilities (e.g., schools, hospitals, licensed [JYesdNo
day care centers, or group homes) within 1500 feet of the project site?

If Yes,
i. Identify Facilities:

e. Does the project site contain an existing dam? [JYesdNo
If Yes:
i. Dimensions of the dam and impoundment:
e Dam height: feet
e Dam length: feet
e Surface area: acres
e Volume impounded: gallons OR acre-feet

ii. Dam’s existing hazard classification:

iii. Provide date and summarize results of last inspection:

f. Has the project site ever been used as a municipal, commercial or industrial solid waste management facility, [JYesdNo
or does the project site adjoin property which is now, or was at one time, used as a solid waste management facility?
If Yes:

i. Has the facility been formally closed? [JYes[]1 No
e If yes, cite sources/documentation:

ii. Describe the location of the project site relative to the boundaries of the solid waste management facility:

iii. Describe any development constraints due to the prior solid waste activities:

g. Have hazardous wastes been generated, treated and/or disposed of at the site, or does the project site adjoin yesdNo
property which is now or was at one time used to commercially treat, store and/or dispose of hazardous waste?
If Yes:

i. Describe waste(s) handled and waste management activities, including approximate time when activities occurred:

h. Potential contamination history. Has there been a reported spill at the proposed project site, or have any yesd No
remedial actions been conducted at or adjacent to the proposed site?
If Yes:
i. Is any portion of the site listed on the NYSDEC Spills Incidents database or Environmental Site yes[INo
Remediation database? Check all that apply:
[ Yes - Spills Incidents database Provide DEC ID number(s):
[1 Yes — Environmental Site Remediation database Provide DEC ID number(s):

[ Neither database
ii. If site has been subject of RCRA corrective activities, describe control measures:

iii. Is the project within 2000 feet of any site in the NYSDEC Environmental Site Remediation database? CdyesdINo
If yes, provide DEC ID number(s):

iv. If yes to (i), (ii) or (iii) above, describe current status of site(s):

Page 10 of 13




v. Is the project site subject to an institutional control limiting property uses? OYyesCINo
If yes, DEC site ID number:

Describe the type of institutional control (e.g., deed restriction or easement):

Describe any use limitations:

Describe any engineering controls:

Will the project affect the institutional or engineering controls in place? [JYes[INo
Explain:

E.2. Natural Resources On or Near Project Site

a. What is the average depth to bedrock on the project site? Approximately 1.5 feet

b. Are there bedrock outcroppings on the project site? [JYes[ONo
If Yes, what proportion of the site is comprised of bedrock outcroppings? %

c. Predominant soil type(s) present on project site: Mardin channery silt loam, 2-8% slopes 39.9 %
Volusia channery silt loam, 3-8% slopes 371 %

Lordstown channery silt loam, 3-12% slopes 13.9 %

d. What is the average depth to the water table on the project site? Average: Approx. 1.5 feet

e. Drainage status of project site soils:[Z] Well Drained: 13.3 % of site
Moderately Well Drained: 49.8 % of site
Poorly Drained 37.1 % of site

f. Approximate proportion of proposed action site with slopes: (] 0-10%: 100 % of site
[] 10-15%: % of site
[] 15% or greater: % of site

g. Are there any unique geologic features on the project site? [JYesONo
If Yes, describe:

h. Surface water features.

i. Does any portion of the project site contain wetlands or other waterbodies (including streams, rivers, [JYes[dNo
ponds or lakes)?
ii. Do any wetlands or other waterbodies adjoin the project site? [Ivyes[INo
If Yes to either i or ii, continue. If No, skip to E.2.i.
iii. Are any of the wetlands or waterbodies within or adjoining the project site regulated by any federal, Oyes[CINo

state or local agency?
iv. For each identified regulated wetland and waterbody on the project site, provide the following information:

e  Streams: Name Classification
®  Lakesor Ponds: Name Classification
® Wetlands: Name Approximate Size
®  Wetland No. (if regulated by DEC)
v. Are any of the above water bodies listed in the most recent compilation of NY'S water quality-impaired Yes[ONo

waterbodies?
If yes, name of impaired water body/bodies and basis for listing as impaired:

i. Is the project site in a designated Floodway? [CIYyes[ONo

j. Is the project site in the 100-year Floodplain? [dYes[ONo

k. Is the project site in the 500-year Floodplain? [dYes[ONo

Il.fl\s(the project site located over, or immediately adjoining, a primary, principal or sole source aquifer? [CJyesONo
es:

i. Name of aquifer:

Page 11 of 13



http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91670.html
dxrebecc
Sticky Note
Marked set by dxrebecc


m. ldentify the predominant wildlife species that occupy or use the project site:

Grey squirrel Rabbit Eastern chipmunk

White-tailed deer Raccoon Migratory birds
n. Does the project site contain a designated significant natural community? [dYes[ONo
If Yes:

i. Describe the habitat/community (composition, function, and basis for designation):

ii. Source(s) of description or evaluation:

iii. Extent of community/habitat:

e Currently: acres
e Following completion of project as proposed: acres
e Gain or loss (indicate + or -): acres
0. Does project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by the federal government or NYS as [ Yes[dNo

endangered or threatened, or does it contain any areas identified as habitat for an endangered or threatened species?

If Yes:
i. Species and listing (endangered or threatened):

p. Does the project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by NYS as rare, or as a species of [YesOINo
special concern?

If Yes:
i. Species and listing:

g. Is the project site or adjoining area currently used for hunting, trapping, fishing or shell fishing? [dvesOdNo
If yes, give a brief description of how the proposed action may affect that use:

E.3. Designated Public Resources On or Near Project Site

a. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in a designated agricultural district certified pursuant to [Yes[INo
Agriculture and Markets Law, Article 25-AA, Section 303 and 304?
If Yes, provide county plus district name/number: STEU003

b. Are agricultural lands consisting of highly productive soils present? OlYes[CINo
i. If Yes: acreage(s) on project site? 9.6 acres

ii. Source(s) of soil rating(s): USGS Web Soil Survey

c. Does the project site contain all or part of, or is it substantially contiguous to, a registered National [OYes[ONo
Natural Landmark?
If Yes:
i. Nature of the natural landmark: [ Biological Community [ Geological Feature

ii. Provide brief description of landmark, including values behind designation and approximate size/extent:

d. Is the project site located in or does it adjoin a state listed Critical Environmental Area? [dYesONo
If Yes:
i. CEA name:

ii. Basis for designation:

iii. Designating agency and date:

Page 12 of 13



http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91675.html

¢. Does the project site contain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archacological site, or district O YestANo
which is listed on the National or State Register of Historic Places, or that has been determined by the Commissioner of the NYS
Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for listing on the State Register of Historic Places?

If Yes:

i. Nature of historic/archacological resource: [JArchaeological Site [ Historic Building or District
ii. Name:

iii. Brief description of attributes on which listing is based:

f. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for MYes DI:I_O
archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory?

g. Have additional archacological or historic site(s) or resources been identified on the project site? OYesANo

If Yes:

i. Describe possible resource(s):

ii, Basis for identification:

h. Is the project site within fives miles of any officially designated and publicly accessible federal, state, or local CYeskANo
scenic or aesthetic resource?

If Yes:
i. Identify resource:

ii. Nature of, or basis for, designation (e.g., established highway overlook, state or local park, state historic trail or scenic byway,
etc.):

iii. Distance between project and resource: miles.
i. Is the project site located within a designated river corridor under the Wild, Scenic and Recreational Rivers O YeskANo
Program 6 NYCRR 666?
If Yes:
i. Identify the name of the river and its designation:
ii. Is the activity consistent with development restrictions contained in 6NYCRR Part 6667 [OYes[INo

F. Additional Information
Attach any additional information which may be needed to clarify your project.

If you have identified any adverse impacts which could be associated with your proposal, please describe those impacts plus any
measures which you propose to avoid or minimize them,

G. Verification
I certify that the information provided is true to the best of my knowledge.

Applicant:’Sponsor_I_\Tame NY Pulteney |, LLC c/o Peter Dolgos Date fm?/( 7/; i

>/ 7
Signature (/(_Zﬁ{i@éjﬁ’l Title r:)\/’?)

PRINT FORM Page 13 of 13




EAF Mapper Summary Report

Tuesday, November 24, 2020 10:22 AM

Jerusalem

Fulteney

orners

. o 3
b s Ramig Hill Rd f

Disclaimer:

The EAF Mapper is a screening tool intended to assist
project sponsors and reviewing agencies in preparing an environmental
assessment form (EAF). Not all questions asked in the EAF are
answered by the EAF Mapper. Additional information on any EAF
question can be obtained by consulting the EAF Workbooks. Although
the EAF Mapper provides the most up-to-date digital data available to
DEC, you may also need to contact local or other data sources in order

Tor-:snm

Ra

. wDetralt

i Lake

{
/

a koD

Hlln i [

Cleveland

1Pittsburgh

to obtain data not provided by the Mapper. Digital data is not a
substitute for agency determinations.

Ottawa Monfreal

o hedichastar

__.ﬁ.ll:r.‘lrr,' N
Boston

5 Providence

Hew York

Philadelphia

I
Lamin, LSGS, Intenm ap, IMCREN 1ENTF‘ MECan, Esn Japan, r‘II:"I'I Esn China (Hang Kangj, E;n El 1ENT‘I3“F|IIF\‘L.1|'| Esni Japan, METI, Esn k.l'um |H:||'|_| Kangj, Esn
Karea, E"|| (Mhailand, NGOC, (0 OpenStregiap contnbutors, and the GIS Lser e :umml.lnrb.r slgnip enStresthap :urrtnI:uth|1|:;»£|,ar plla&l 1i||'|-e GlS User Camm unity

B.i.i [Coastal or Waterfront Area]
B.i.ii [Local Waterfront Revitalization Area]

C.2.b. [Special Planning District]

E.1.h [DEC Spills or Remediation Site -
Potential Contamination History]

E.1.h.i [DEC Spills or Remediation Site -
Listed]

E.1.h.i [DEC Spills or Remediation Site -
Environmental Site Remediation Database]

E.1.h.iii [Within 2,000' of DEC Remediation
Site]

E.2.g [Unique Geologic Features]
E.2.h.i [Surface Water Features]
E.2.h.ii [Surface Water Features]

E.2.h.iii [Surface Water Features]

E.2.h.v [Impaired Water Bodies]
E.2.i. [Floodway]

E.2.j. [100 Year Floodplain]
E.2.k. [500 Year Floodplain]

E.2.l. [Aquifers]
E.2.n. [Natural Communities]

E.2.0. [Endangered or Threatened Species]

No
No

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF

Workbook.

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF

Workbook.

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF

Workbook.

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF

Workbook.
No

No
No

Yes

Yes - Digital mapping information on local and federal wetlands and
waterbodies is known to be incomplete. Refer to EAF Workbook.

No

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF

Workbook.

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF

Workbook.

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF

Workbook.
No

No
No

Full Environmental Assessment Form - EAF Mapper Summary Report




E.2.p. [Rare Plants or Animals] No

E.3.a. [Agricultural District] Yes
E.3.a. [Agricultural District] STEUO003
E.3.c. [National Natural Landmark] No

E.3.d [Critical Environmental Area] No

E.3.e. [National or State Register of Historic Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF
Places or State Eligible Sites] Workbook.

E.3.f. [Archeological Sites] Yes
E.3.i. [Designated River Corridor] No

Full Environmental Assessment Form - EAF Mapper Summary Report



SITE LOCATION

NY Pulteney I, LLC MAP
Chidsey Hill Road
Solar Farm Project

Town of Pulteney, Steuben County, New York

Legend

|:| Project Site Location ;
Souree; Es7], DighzlGlooe, GeeEye, Eithsiar Geographies, @LN]E. ERGMAN
USDA, USGS, AcieGRID, IGN, 2nd the GIS Ussr Ce mmun ity




Agency Use Only [If applicable]

Full Environmental Assessment Form Project : [DRS- Chidsey Hil Solar Farm

Part 2 - Identification of Potential Project Impacts ~ pate: [s1021

Part 2 is to be completed by the lead agency. Part 2 is designed to help the lead agency inventory all potential resources that could
be affected by a proposed project or action. We recognize that the lead agency’s reviewer(s) will not necessarily be environmental
professionals. So, the questions are designed to walk a reviewer through the assessment process by providing a series of questions that
can be answered using the information found in Part 1. To further assist the lead agency in completing Part 2, the form identifies the
most relevant questions in Part 1 that will provide the information needed to answer the Part 2 question. When Part 2 is completed, the
lead agency will have identified the relevant environmental areas that may be impacted by the proposed activity.

If the lead agency is a state agency and the action is in any Coastal Area, complete the Coastal Assessment Form before proceeding
with this assessment.

Tips for completing Part 2:
e Review all of the information provided in Part 1.
Review any application, maps, supporting materials and the Full EAF Workbook.
Answer each of the 18 questions in Part 2.
If you answer “Yes” to a numbered question, please complete all the questions that follow in that section.
If you answer “No” to a numbered question, move on to the next numbered question.
Check appropriate column to indicate the anticipated size of the impact.
Proposed projects that would exceed a numeric threshold contained in a question should result in the reviewing agency
checking the box “Moderate to large impact may occur.”
The reviewer is not expected to be an expert in environmental analysis.
e If you are not sure or undecided about the size of an impact, it may help to review the sub-questions for the general
question and consult the workbook.
e When answering a question consider all components of the proposed activity, that is, the “whole action”.
e Consider the possibility for long-term and cumulative impacts as well as direct impacts.
e  Answer the question in a reasonable manner considering the scale and context of the project.

1. Impact on Land
Proposed action may involve construction on, or physical alteration of, [INO O] YES
the land surface of the proposed site. (See Part 1. D.1)
If “Yes, answer questions a - j. If ““No”’, move on to Section 2.

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part | small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may involve construction on land where depth to water table is
E2d O O
less than 3 feet.
b. The proposed action may involve construction on slopes of 15% or greater. E2f
c. The proposed action may involve construction on land where bedrock is exposed, or E2a Ol O
generally within 5 feet of existing ground surface.
d. The proposed action may involve the excavation and removal of more than 1,000 tons | D2a | O
of natural material.
e. The proposed action may involve construction that continues for more than one year Dle O O
or in multiple phases.
f. The proposed action may result in increased erosion, whether from physical D2e, D2q Ol O
disturbance or vegetation removal (including from treatment by herbicides).
g. The proposed action is, or may be, located within a Coastal Erosion hazard area. Bli Ol [l
h. Other impacts: O O

Page 1 of 10

FEAF 2019


http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91690.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91690.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91704.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91709.html

2. Impact on Geological Features

The proposed action may result in the modification or destruction of, or inhibit

access to, any unique or unusual land forms on the site (e.g., cliffs, dunes, [OJNO []YES
minerals, fossils, caves). (See Part 1. E.2.9)
If “Yes”, answer guestions a - ¢. If ““No”’, move on to Section 3.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part | small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. ldentify the specific land form(s) attached: E2g o o
b. The proposed action may affect or is adjacent to a geological feature listed as a E3c m| |
registered National Natural Landmark.
Specific feature:
c. Other impacts: ] o
3. Impacts on Surface Water
The proposed action may affect one or more wetlands or other surface water ONo LIYES
bodies (e.g., streams, rivers, ponds or lakes). (See Part 1. D.2, E.2.h)
If “Yes™, answer questions a - I. If ““No””, move on to Section 4.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part | small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may create a new water body. D2b, D1h ] |
b. The proposed action may result in an increase or decrease of over 10% or more than a D2b = =
10 acre increase or decrease in the surface area of any body of water.
c. The proposed action may involve dredging more than 100 cubic yards of material D2a ] o
from a wetland or water body.
d. The proposed action may involve construction within or adjoining a freshwater or E2h ] o
tidal wetland, or in the bed or banks of any other water body.
e. The proposed action may create turbidity in a waterbody, either from upland erosion, | D2a, D2h m| ]
runoff or by disturbing bottom sediments.
f. The proposed action may include construction of one or more intake(s) for withdrawal | D2¢ m| |
of water from surface water.
g. The proposed action may include construction of one or more outfall(s) for discharge | D2d m| |
of wastewater to surface water(s).
h. The proposed action may cause soil erosion, or otherwise create a source of D2e m| ]
stormwater discharge that may lead to siltation or other degradation of receiving
water bodies.
i. The proposed action may affect the water quality of any water bodies within or E2h m| ]
downstream of the site of the proposed action.
j. The proposed action may involve the application of pesticides or herbicides in or D2q, E2h m |
around any water body.
k. The proposed action may require the construction of new, or expansion of existing, D1la, D2d ] ]
wastewater treatment facilities.

Page 2 of 10



http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91714.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91719.html

|. Other impacts: ] o
4. Impact on groundwater
The proposed action may result in new or additional use of ground water, or El NO |:| YES
may have the potential to introduce contaminants to ground water or an aquifer.
(SeePart1.D.2.a, D.2.c,D.2.d, D.2.p, D.2.q, D.2.t)
If “Yes™, answer questions a - h. If “No”’, move on to Section 5.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part | small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may require new water supply wells, or create additional demand | D2c | |
on supplies from existing water supply wells.
b. Water supply demand from the proposed action may exceed safe and sustainable D2c | |
withdrawal capacity rate of the local supply or aquifer.
Cite Source:
c. The proposed action may allow or result in residential uses in areas without water and | D1a, D2c ] ]
Sewer services.
d. The proposed action may include or require wastewater discharged to groundwater. D2d, E2I O O
e. The proposed action may result in the construction of water supply wells in locations | D2c, E1f, | |
where groundwater is, or is suspected to be, contaminated. Elg, Elh
f. The proposed action may require the bulk storage of petroleum or chemical products | D2p, E2I o o
over ground water or an aquifer.
g. The proposed action may involve the commercial application of pesticides within 100 | E2h, D2q, | |
feet of potable drinking water or irrigation sources. E2l, D2c
h. Other impacts: o o
5. Impact on Flooding
The proposed action may result in development on lands subject to flooding. OJnNo JYES
(See Part 1. E.2)
If “Yes™, answer questions a - g. If “No”’, move on to Section 6.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part | small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may result in development in a designated floodway. E2i o o
b. The proposed action may result in development within a 100 year floodplain. E2j | |
c. The proposed action may result in development within a 500 year floodplain. E2k ] ]
d. The proposed action may result in, or require, modification of existing drainage D2b, D2e | |
patterns.
e. The proposed action may change flood water flows that contribute to flooding. D2b, E2i, | |
E2j, E2k
f. If there is a dam located on the site of the proposed action, is the dam in need of repair, | Ele | |
or upgrade?

Page 3 of 10



http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91724.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91729.html

g. Other impacts: - -
6. Impacts on Air
The proposed action may include a state regulated air emission source. ElNO |:|YES
(See Part 1. D.2.f., D.2.h, D.2.9)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - f. If “No”’, move on to Section 7.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part | small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. If the proposed action requires federal or state air emission permits, the action may
also emit one or more greenhouse gases at or above the following levels:
i. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon dioxide (CO,) D2g | ]
ii. More than 3.5 tons/year of nitrous oxide (N,O) D2g | o
iii. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon equivalent of perfluorocarbons (PFCs) D2g o o
iv. More than .045 tons/year of sulfur hexafluoride (SFe) D2g E E
v. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon dioxide equivalent of D2g
hydrochloroflourocarbons (HFCs) emissions
vi. 43 tons/year or more of methane D2h o =
b. The proposed action may generate 10 tons/year or more of any one designated D2g o o
hazardous air pollutant, or 25 tons/year or more of any combination of such hazardous
air pollutants.
c. The proposed action may require a state air registration, or may produce an emissions D2f, D2g o o
rate of total contaminants that may exceed 5 Ibs. per hour, or may include a heat
source capable of producing more than 10 million BTU’s per hour.
d. The proposed action may reach 50% of any of the thresholds in “a” through “c”, D2g | |
above.
e. The proposed action may result in the combustion or thermal treatment of more than 1 | D2s | |
ton of refuse per hour.
f. Other impacts: | |

7. Impact on Plants and Animals

The proposed action may result in a loss of flora or fauna. (See Part 1. E.2. m.-q.)

If “Yes™, answer questions a - j. If ““No””, move on to Section 8.

e}

[]YES

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part | small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may cause reduction in population or loss of individuals of any E2o0 | |
threatened or endangered species, as listed by New York State or the Federal
government, that use the site, or are found on, over, or near the site.
b. The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used by E20 | |
any rare, threatened or endangered species, as listed by New York State or the federal
government.
c. The proposed action may cause reduction in population, or loss of individuals, of any | E2p | |
species of special concern or conservation need, as listed by New York State or the
Federal government, that use the site, or are found on, over, or near the site.
d. The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used by E2p | |
any species of special concern and conservation need, as listed by New York State or
the Federal government.

Page 4 of 10



http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91734.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91739.html

e. The proposed action may diminish the capacity of a registered National Natural E3c o o
Landmark to support the biological community it was established to protect.
f. The proposed action may result in the removal of, or ground disturbance in, any E2n | |
portion of a designated significant natural community.
Source:
g. The proposed action may substantially interfere with nesting/breeding, foraging, or
S - . . . - E2m O O
over-wintering habitat for the predominant species that occupy or use the project site.
h. The proposed action requires the conversion of more than 10 acres of forest, E1b ] ]
grassland or any other regionally or locally important habitat.
Habitat type & information source:
i. Proposed action (commercial, industrial or recreational projects, only) involves use of | D2q o o
herbicides or pesticides.
j. Other impacts: | |

8. Impact on Agricultural Resources

The proposed action may impact agricultural resources. (See Part 1. E.3.a. and b.)

If “Yes”, answer questions a - h. If ““No”’, move on to Section 9.

N

[O]YES

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part | small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur

a. The proposed action may impact soil classified within soil group 1 through 4 of the E2c, E3b (| O
NYS Land Classification System.

b. The proposed action may sever, cross or otherwise limit access to agricultural land Ela, Elb O (|
(includes cropland, hayfields, pasture, vineyard, orchard, etc).

c. The proposed action may result in the excavation or compaction of the soil profile of | E3b o O
active agricultural land.

d. The proposed action may irreversibly convert agricultural land to non-agricultural Elb, E3a (] O
uses, either more than 2.5 acres if located in an Agricultural District, or more than 10
acres if not within an Agricultural District.

e. The proposed action may disrupt or prevent installation of an agricultural land Ela, Elb (| O
management system.

f. The proposed action may result, directly or indirectly, in increased development C2c, C3, | O
potential or pressure on farmland. D2c, D2d

g. The proposed project is not consistent with the adopted municipal Farmland C2c o O
Protection Plan.

h. Other impacts: O O

Page 5 of 10



http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91745.html

Impact on Aesthetic Resources

The land use of the proposed action are obviously different from, or are in
sharp contrast to, current land use patterns between the proposed project and
a scenic or aesthetic resource. (Part 1. E.1.a, E.1.b, E.3.h.)

If “Yes”, answer questions a - g. If “No”, go to Section 10.

[OJNno

[ JYES

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part | small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
. Proposed action may be visible from any officially designated federal, state, or local E3h | |
scenic or aesthetic resource.
. The proposed action may result in the obstruction, elimination or significant E3h, C2b O O
screening of one or more officially designated scenic views.
. The proposed action may be visible from publicly accessible vantage points: E3h
i. Seasonally (e.g., screened by summer foliage, but visible during other seasons) | m|
ii. Year round o o
. The situation or activity in which viewers are engaged while viewing the proposed E3h
action is: E2q
i. Routine travel by residents, including travel to and from work ’ 0 0
ii. Recreational or tourism based activities Elc - -
. The proposed action may cause a diminishment of the public enjoyment and E3h o ]
appreciation of the designated aesthetic resource.
. There are similar projects visible within the following distance of the proposed D1la, Ela, o o
project: D1f, D1g
0-1/2 mile
Y% -3 mile
3-5 mile
5+ mile
. Other impacts: o |

10.

Impact on Historic and Archeological Resources

The proposed action may occur in or adjacent to a historic or archaeological
resource. (Part1.E.3.e,f.andg.)

If “Yes™, answer questions a - e. If ““No”, go to Section 11.

[ ]NnO

[O]YES

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part | small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur

a. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous

to, any buildings, archaeological site or district which is listed on the National or E3e (I O

State Register of Historical Places, or that has been determined by the Commissioner

of the NYS Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for

listing on the State Register of Historic Places.
b. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous | E3f O O

to, an area designated as sensitive for archaeological sites on the NY State Historic

Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory.
c. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous | E3g ) O

to, an archaeological site not included on the NY SHPO inventory.

Source:

Page 6 of 10



http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91750.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91760.html

d. Other impacts: | |
If any of the above (a-d) are answered “Moderate to large impact may
€. occur”, continue with the following questions to help support conclusions in Part 3:
i.  The proposed action may result in the destruction or alteration of all or part E3e, E3g, | |
of the site or property. E3f
ii. The proposed action may result in the alteration of the property’s setting or E3e, E3f, O O
integrity. E3g, Ela,
Elb
iii. The proposed action may result in the introduction of visual elements which E3e, E3f, O O
are out of character with the site or property, or may alter its setting. E3g, E3h,
C2,C3
11. Impact on Open Space and Recreation
The proposed action may result in a loss of recreational opportunities or a @ NO |:|YES
reduction of an open space resource as designated in any adopted
municipal open space plan.
(SeePart1.C.2.c,E.1.c., E.2.q.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - e. If ““No”’, go to Section 12.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part | small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may result in an impairment of natural functions, or “ecosystem | D2e, Elb o o
services”, provided by an undeveloped area, including but not limited to stormwater E2h,
storage, nutrient cycling, wildlife habitat. E2m, E20,
E2n, E2p
b. The proposed action may result in the loss of a current or future recreational resource. | C2a, Elc, ] |
C2c, E2q
c. The proposed action may eliminate open space or recreational resource in an area C2a, C2c ] m|
with few such resources. Elc, E2q
d. The proposed action may result in loss of an area now used informally by the C2c, Elc ] |
community as an open space resource.
e. Other impacts: m] |
12. Impact on Critical Environmental Areas
The proposed action may be located within or adjacent to a critical @ NO |:| YES
environmental area (CEA). (See Part 1. E.3.d)
If “Yes™, answer questions a - ¢. If ““No”’, go to Section 13.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part | small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may result in a reduction in the quantity of the resource or E3d o o
characteristic which was the basis for designation of the CEA.
b. The proposed action may result in a reduction in the quality of the resource or E3d o o
characteristic which was the basis for designation of the CEA.
c. Other impacts: | |

Page 7 of 10



http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91765.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91771.html

13. Impact on Transportation
The proposed action may result in a change to existing transportation systems.
(See Part 1. D.2.j)
If “Yes™, answer questions a - /. If ““No”’, go to Section 14.

[O]no

[ ]ves

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part | small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. Projected traffic increase may exceed capacity of existing road network. D2j o o
b. The proposed action may result in the construction of paved parking area for 500 or D2j o o
more vehicles.
c. The proposed action will degrade existing transit access. D2j ] ]
d. The proposed action will degrade existing pedestrian or bicycle accommodations. D2j | |
e. The proposed action may alter the present pattern of movement of people or goods. D2j ] ]
f. Other impacts: o o
14. Impact on Energy
The proposed action may cause an increase in the use of any form of energy. @ NO |:|YES
(See Part 1. D.2.k)
If “Yes™, answer questions a - e. If ““No”, go to Section 15.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part | small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action will require a new, or an upgrade to an existing, substation. D2k ] o
b. The proposed action will require the creation or extension of an energy transmission D1f, o o
or supply system to serve more than 50 single or two-family residences or to serve a | D1q, D2k
commercial or industrial use.
c. The proposed action may utilize more than 2,500 MWhrs per year of electricity. D2k o o
d. The proposed action may involve heating and/or cooling of more than 100,000 square | D1g | |
feet of building area when completed.
e. Other Impacts:

15. Impact on Noise, Odor, and Light

The proposed action may result in an increase in noise, odors, or outdoor lighting.

(See Part 1. D.2.m., n., and 0.)
If “Yes™, answer questions a - f. If ““No”, go to Section 16.

[ ]NO

[O]YES

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part | small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may produce sound above noise levels established by local D2m O O
regulation.
b. The proposed action may result in blasting within 1,500 feet of any residence, D2m, E1d
hospital, school, licensed day care center, or nursing home.
c. The proposed action may result in routine odors for more than one hour per day. D20 O

Page 8 of 10



http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91776.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91781.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91786.html

d. The proposed action may result in light shining onto adjoining properties. D2n O O
e. The proposed action may result in lighting creating sky-glow brighter than existing D2n, Ela O O
area conditions.
f. Other impacts: O O
16. Impact on Human Health
The proposed action may have an impact on human health from exposure @ NO |:|YES
to new or existing sources of contaminants. (See Part 1.D.2.q., E.1. d. f. g.and h.)
If “Yes™, answer questions a - m. If ““No”’, go to Section 17.
Relevant No,or Moderate
Part | small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may cccur occur
a. The proposed action is located within 1500 feet of a school, hospital, licensed day Eld o o
care center, group home, nursing home or retirement community.
b. The site of the proposed action is currently undergoing remediation. Elg, Elh m m
c. There is a completed emergency spill remediation, or a completed environmental site | E1g, Elh | |
remediation on, or adjacent to, the site of the proposed action.
d. The site of the action is subject to an institutional control limiting the use of the Elg, Elh ] |
property (e.g., easement or deed restriction).
e. The proposed action may affect institutional control measures that were put in place Elg, Elh ] |
to ensure that the site remains protective of the environment and human health.
f. The proposed action has adequate control measures in place to ensure that future D2t ] o
generation, treatment and/or disposal of hazardous wastes will be protective of the
environment and human health.
g. The proposed action involves construction or modification of a solid waste D2q, E1f o o
management facility.
h. The proposed action may result in the unearthing of solid or hazardous waste. D2q, E1f i i
i. The proposed action may result in an increase in the rate of disposal, or processing, of | D2r, D2s | m]
solid waste.
j. The proposed action may result in excavation or other disturbance within 2000 feet of | E1f, Elg ] m|
a site used for the disposal of solid or hazardous waste. Elh
k. The proposed action may result in the migration of explosive gases from a landfill E1f, Elg ] m|
site to adjacent off site structures.
I. The proposed action may result in the release of contaminated leachate from the D2s, E1f, ] o
project site. D2r
m. Other impacts:

Page 9 of 10



http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91791.html

17. Consistency with Community Plans
The proposed action is not consistent with adopted land use plans.
(SeePart1.C.1,C.2.and C.3)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - h. If ““No”, go to Section 18.

[O]Nno

[ ]ves

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part | small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action’s land use components may be different from, or in sharp C2,C3,D1a | |
contrast to, current surrounding land use pattern(s). Ela Elb
b. The proposed action will cause the permanent population of the city, town or village | C2 ] o
in which the project is located to grow by more than 5%.
c. The proposed action is inconsistent with local land use plans or zoning regulations. C2,C2,C3 o o
d. The proposed action is inconsistent with any County plans, or other regional land use | C2, C2 m |
plans.
e. The proposed action may cause a change in the density of development that is not C3, D1c, | ]
supported by existing infrastructure or is distant from existing infrastructure. D1d, D1f,
D1d, Elb
f. The proposed action is located in an area characterized by low density development C4, D2c, D2d O o
that will require new or expanded public infrastructure. D2j
g. The proposed action may induce secondary development impacts (e.g., residential or | C2a a a
commercial development not included in the proposed action)
h. Other: o o

18. Consistency with Community Character
The proposed project is inconsistent with the existing community character.
(See Part 1. C.2,C.3,D.2, E.3)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - g. If “No”, proceed to Part 3.

[O]NO

[ ]YEs

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part | small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may replace or eliminate existing facilities, structures, or areas E3e, E3f, E3g o o
of historic importance to the community.
b. The proposed action may create a demand for additional community services (e.g. C4 O .
schools, police and fire)
c. The proposed action may displace affordable or low-income housing in an area where | C2, C3, D1f | |
there is a shortage of such housing. Dlg, Ela
d. The proposed action may interfere with the use or enjoyment of officially recognized | C2, E3 ] |
or designated public resources.
e. The proposed action is inconsistent with the predominant architectural scale and C2,C3 | |
character.
f. Proposed action is inconsistent with the character of the existing natural landscape. C2,C3 | |
Ela, Elb
E2g, E2h
g. Other impacts: o o

PRINT FULL FORM

Page 10 of 10



http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91799.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91813.html

Agency Use Only [IfApplicable]

Project : |DRs- Chidsey Hill Solar Farm

Date: |5/10/1

Full Environmental Assessment Form
Part 3 - Evaluation of the Magnitude and Importance of Project Impacts
and
Determination of Significance

Part 3 provides the reasons in support of the determination of significance. The lead agency must complete Part 3 for every question
in Part 2 where the impact has been identified as potentially moderate to large or where there is a need to explain why a particular
element of the proposed action will not, or may, result in a significant adverse environmental impact.

Based on the analysis in Part 3, the lead agency must decide whether to require an environmental impact statement to further assess
the proposed action or whether available information is sufficient for the lead agency to conclude that the proposed action will not
have a significant adverse environmental impact. By completing the certification on the next page, the lead agency can complete its
determination of significance.

Reasons Supporting This Determination:
To complete this section:

o Identify the impact based on the Part 2 responses and describe its magnitude. Magnitude considers factors such as severity,
size or extent of an impact.

e Assess the importance of the impact. Importance relates to the geographic scope, duration, probability of the impact
occurring, number of people affected by the impact and any additional environmental consequences if the impact were to
occur.

e The assessment should take into consideration any design element or project changes.

e Repeat this process for each Part 2 question where the impact has been identified as potentially moderate to large or where
there is a need to explain why a particular element of the proposed action will not, or may, result in a significant adverse
environmental impact.

e  Provide the reason(s) why the impact may, or will not, result in a significant adverse environmental impact

e For Conditional Negative Declarations identify the specific condition(s) imposed that will modify the proposed action so that
no significant adverse environmental impacts will result.

e Attach additional sheets, as needed.

Refer to attached narrative.

Determination of Significance - Type 1 and Unlisted Actions

SEQR Status: [O] Type1 [ unlisted

Identify portions of EAF completed for this Project: [O] Part 1 [O] Part 2 [O]Part 3

FEAF 2019



http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91818.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91818.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91818.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91824.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91829.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91829.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91836.html

Upon review of the information recorded on this EAF, as noted, plus this additional support information
Refer to attached narrative document.

and considering both the magnitude and importance of each identified potential impact, it is the conclusion of the
Town of Pulteney Planning Board as lead agency that:

A. This project will result in no significant adverse impacts on the environment, and, therefore, an environmental impact
statement need not be prepared. Accordingly, this negative declaration is issued.

] B. Although this project could have a significant adverse impact on the environment, that impact will be avoided or
substantially mitigated because of the following conditions which will be required by the lead agency:

There will, therefore, be no significant adverse impacts from the project as conditioned, and, therefore, this conditioned negative
declaration is issued. A conditioned negative declaration may be used only for UNLISTED actions (see 6 NYCRR 617.7(d)).

] ¢ This Project may result in one or more significant adverse impacts on the environment, and an environmental impact
statement must be prepared to further assess the impact(s) and possible mitigation and to explore alternatives to avoid or reduce those
impacts. Accordingly, this positive declaration is issued.

Name of Action: Delaware River Solar - NY Pulteney I, LLC Community Solar Farm

Name of Lead Agency: Town of Pulteney Planning Board

Name of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency: Terry Gibson

Title of Responsible Officer: town of Pulteney Planning Board Chairman

Signature of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency: - % ' Date: 5/10/21
£ P geney LAN7 /;24/%@”\

Signature of Preparer (if different from Responsible Officer) Date:

For Further Information:

Contact Person: Erica Giambra

Address: Pulteney Town Hall, 9226 County Route 74, P.O. Box 214, Pulteney, New York 14874
Telephone Number: (607) 868-4222

E-mail: pultck@yahoo.com
For Type 1 Actions and Conditioned Negative Declarations, a copy of this Notice is sent to:

Chief Executive Officer of the political subdivision in which the action will be principally located (e.g., Town / City / Village of)
Other involved agencies (if any)

Applicant (if any)

Environmental Notice Bulletin: http://www.dec.ny.gov/enb/enb.html

PRINT FULL FORM Page 2 of 2




May 10, 2021

FULL ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESMENT FORM
PART Ill - EVALUATION OF THE SIGNIFICANCE OF IMPACTS

The Town of Pulteney Planning Board has compared the impacts reasonably expected to result from
the proposed Delaware River Solar (DRS) d/b/a NY Pulteney I, LLC, NY Pulteney | Community Solar
Farm Project as outlines herein, including:

e Considered the action as defined in subdivisions 617.2(b) and 617.3(g);

e Reviewed the FEAF, the criteria identified in 617.7(c)(1) and other supporting information to
identify relevant areas of environmental concern;

e For the purpose of determining significant adverse impacts on the environment of those factors
listed above, the long-term, short-term, direct, indirect and cumulative impacts, including
simultaneous or subsequent actions, to the extent reasonable, as included in any long range plan
for the action, any action that is a result of the reviewed action or is dependent on the action was
reviewed 617.7(c)(2); and

e The significance of any likely consequences was assessed in connection with the setting of the
action, the likelihood of occurrence, duration, irreversibility, geographic scope, magnitude and the
number of people affected as a consequence of the action. 617.7(c)(3).

The following summarizes the review of the criteria provided in 617.7(c) as indicators of significant
adverse impacts and how the project has been designed to avoid significant adverse environmental
impacts:

Part I, Section 8. Impact on Agricultural Resources

As the Project is proposed to take place on agricultural land, the proposed action may sever, cross or
otherwise limit access to agricultural land. The proposed project has been designed to be located
primarily on land that is not mapped by the U.S. Department of Agriculture as “prime farmland soils” to
the maximum extent practicable. The proposed project area will be seeded with native species to
encourage pollinator species in the project area. The landowner will continue to farm the remaining
portions of the property. Because the project site is within an Agricultural District mapped by the New
York State Department of Agriculture and Markets (NYSDAM), the project sponsor has been required to
submit a Notice of Intent (NOI) to place a solar project within an agricultural district. As such, the project
sponsor will be required to adhere to the agricultural monitoring and mitigation requirements spelled out
in the NOI approval by NYSDAM. A Decommissioning Plan has been prepared by NY Pulteney |, LLC to
address the removal of the Project at the end of its useful life, after which the agricultural land will be
restored to pre-construction condition.

Part 1, Section 15. Impact on Noise, Odor, and Light

Air quality, ground or surface water quality, traffic or noise levels, solid waste production, erosion
potential, flooding, leaching, or drainage problems:

During construction, dust and exhaust from equipment may affect air quality. However, these impacts will
be temporary and generally minor in nature. The solar panels will not affect air quality during operations.
The solar panels are elevated off the ground on poles and will not create any new impervious surfaces
that would exacerbate erosion or drainage problems. The proposed project possesses a Stormwater




May 10, 2021

Pollution Prevention Plan, has been covered under the NYSDEC Stormwater General Permit, will require
the installation of erosion and sediment controls and will require erosion and sediment control
inspections during and immediately following construction. The concrete inverter pads will have a very
small footprint, and any minor stormwater created by this pad will be retained on-site as detailed on the
submitted site plans. The installation of the solar panels will not increase traffic after construction, as only
3-5 trips to the project site by the project sponsor per year are proposed. Any minor noise created by the
project during operation conforms to Town of Pulteney zoning code and applicable state and federal
regulations. Thus, there is no significant impact is anticipated for these criteria.

The Planning Board of the Town of Pulteney has reviewed the Full Environmental Assessment Form
(FEAF) and the criteria contained in 6 NYCRR §617.7, completed Parts Il and 11l of the FEAF, and has
determined that the NY Pulteney | Community Solar Farm Project will not have significant adverse

impacts on the environment.



RESOLUTION - DETERMINATION OF A NEGATIVE DECLARATION OF SIGNIFICANT
ADVERSE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT FOR THE PROPOSED DELAWARE RIVER SOLAR NY
PULTENEY | CHIDSEY HILL ROAD COMMUNITY SOLAR PROJECT

WHEREAS NY Pulteney |, LLC are proposing a 3.0 MW, community solar project located off of
Chidsey Hill Road in the Town of Pulteney, Steuben County, New York; and

WHEREAS NY Pulteney |, LLC submitted an application to the Town of Pulteney Planning
Board dated December 23, 2020 for the proposed project; and

WHEREAS the proposed project will involve the installation of ground mounted photovoltaic
panels as well as an associated access road, electric utility upgrades, stormwater conveyance,
power inverters, and perimeter fencing for the proposed solar farm; and

WHEREAS, preliminary project design has been developed in conformance with the applicable
environmental laws, design standards, and accepted engineering practice; and

WHEREAS, a delineation of Wetlands and other Waters of the U.S. was conducted on
November 4, 2020 in accordance with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 1987 Methodology.
Three (3) streams were delineated on the property, the project plans to avoid stream impacts;
and

WHEREAS, an online project review was completed on the United States Fish and Wildlife
Service (USFWS) IPaC database and an online project review was completed on the New York
State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) Environmental Resource Mapper
in anticipation that the proposed project will have no adverse impact on state and federally
listed threatened and endangered species, and having confirmed that no state-listed species
are mapped on the project site by NYSDEC and having received correspondence from USFWS
stating that the project will not impact federally-listed threatened or endangered species; and

WHEREAS, correspondence was submitted to the New York State Office of Parks, Recreation
and Historic Preservation (OPRHP) to determine the effect of the project on Historical and
Cultural Resources and having received written confirmation from OPRHP dated December 1,
2020 confirming the project will have no impacts to cultural and historical resources; and

WHEREAS, a Notice of Intent (NOI) to Undertake an Action Within an Agricultural District has
been filed with the New York State Department of Agriculture and Markets (NYSDAM) by the
New York State Energy Research and Development Authority and that as a condition of
funding the applicant must comply with the NYSDAM “Guidelines for Agricultural Mitigation
for Solar Energy Projects,” dated October 2, 2019; and

WHEREAS, Part 1 of a Full Environmental Assessment Form (EAF) has been completed and
reviewed in conjunction within determinations made by other “Involved Agencies” as required
pursuant to 6 NYCRR 617.6 of SEQRA to the following Involved Agencies: New York State

NY Pulteney | SEQRA Neg Dec Resolution 5/10/2021



Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) Region 8, the New York State
Department of Agriculture and Markets (NYSDAM), the New York State Energy Research and
Development Authority (NYSERDA) and the Steuben County Planning Department and said
agencies concurring that the Town of Pulteney Planning Board assume the role of the SEQRA
Lead Agency; and

WHEREAS, Part 2 and Part 3 of a Full Environmental Assessment Form (EAF) has been
completed and reviewed by the Town Planning Board and the Town Planning Board has
determined that no impacts are potentially significant; and

WHEREAS, the proposed project has been reviewed and classified as a "Type | Action”
pursuant to 6 NYCRR 617.4(B)(8) of SEQRA.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town of Pulteney Planning Board hereby issues a
"Negative Declaration of Significant Adverse Environmental Impact" in accordance with
SEQRA for the project, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Town of Pulteney Planning Board authorizes Bergmann
Associates as consultant of the Applicant to publish said Notice of this SEQRA Negative
Declaration of Environmental Impact in the NYSDEC Environmental Notice Bulletin and to
notify all SEQRA involved and interested agencies and the applicant of the issuance of this
SEQRA Negative Declaration, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Town of Pulteney Planning Board directs the Pulteney
Town Clerk to file this SEQRA Negative Declaration of Significant Adverse Environmental
Impact in the Town'’s official files for this project.

Yays All, Passed Unanimously on May 10, 2021 by order of the Pulteney Town Planning Board

NY Pulteney | SEQRA Neg Dec Resolution 5/10/2021



TOWN OF PULTENEY PLANNING BOARD
MEETING May 10, 2021

Present: Chairman Terry Gibson, Jim Howitt, Mark Fellows, Bill Dineen, Dan Radigan, Joe
Sheehy, Megan Granata, Town Attorney Mark Schlechter, and Secretary Erica Giambra.

Chairman Gibson called the regular meeting to order at 7:00pm. It is noted those in attendance
wore masks and practiced social distancing as space allowed.

Chairman Gibson stated there is (1) application to review and (1) hearing that was left open from
the March 8% meeting for further discussion this evening.

Jeffrey Robbins Special Use Permit Application #2021/02- to allow for up to (4) seasonal travel
camper/trailer sites on existing 7.23 acres parcel at 10184 CR 76 in District #3. The applicant
was present to speak on behalf of the application. He explained he is looking to have a business
on the field next to his home to earn extra money renting out seasonal campsites. Provided with
the application, is a sketch showing the proposed (4) sites. Lauren clarified, commenting the
applicant is interested in renting the empty lots, not campers. Only 4 sites are being proposed, as
5 would involve the Dept. of Health and be considered a campground. No permanent utilities
will be provided, being no electric, water, nor sewer hookup. It was asked where the campers
are supposed to take their septic? The closest being Keuka State Park, however the applicant
stated there are other places around. It was asked what the land is used for currently? The
applicant responded it is currently a vacant field that gets brush-hogged. Joe Sheehy asked if the
applicant was aware of any deed restrictions that go with the land? There are no restrictions the
applicant is aware of. Dan Radigan questioned if this proposal would fall under recreational
developments major or minor within the Town Zoning Law? It was concluded, further
discussion would be necessary if a hearing is scheduled. The applicant stated his proposal is
consistent with the Town Comprehensive Plan as an opportunity to encourage tourism as the
local wineries, distilleries, breweries, shops, etc. are currently doing. Chairman Gibson asked
the Board if they had any further questions at this time. With nothing further heard, Mark
Fellows made motion seconded by Jim Howitt to schedule a public hearing June 14, 2021 at
7:00pm on application #2021/02 as presented. All in favor. Carried.

Continuing on the agenda, further discussion regarding the open hearing from March 8, 2021 and
April 12, 2021. (See minutes).

Delaware River Solar, LLC/NY Pulteney 1, LLC Special Use Permit Application #2020/07-
Dave Plante, from Bergmann Engineers, and Annie McQuillan, from Delaware River Solar
(DRS), were once again present to speak on behalf of the application. Dave began by stating, as
requested at the April meeting, responses to all public questions/concerns that were mentioned
from the last meeting, including the revised stormwater report, have been submitted in advance
of tonight’s meeting. Secretary Giambra emailed all Board members to pick up the updated
documents to review prior to the meeting this evening, as well as forwarded the information to
interested members of the public. Dave reiterated that the stormwater report concludes the



runoff would decrease, as supported in over 60 pages of calculations, prepared by professional
engineers. The water will come off the panels slower as they are considered pervious structures.
After revising the stormwater report to reflect the smaller project footprint, the study continues to
confirm that stormwater and runoff will actually decrease as a result of the project. The public
agreed (for those that have been in attendance for the last several meetings) their questions have
been addressed and answered, including changes to the site plan being beneficial and an
improvement from the original proposal, however some still have concerns over runoff,
protecting the land & lake, Chidsey Gully, vegetation, etc. The Board agreed the consistent,
concise, improved application that is being proposed, is better now because of the public
comments and research. Discussion continued regarding runoff. The public noted the current
issue with stormwater and runoff is not an ideal situation. Runoff from manure and corn is a
current concern. The applicants again are stating the project will only help with the current
runoff. They are required by DEC to put seed mix down to stabilize any land that is disturbed.
The DEC will not issue a permit until the site is stabilized with seed and vegetation. The project
teams will be held accountable by the DEC and Town CEO for weekly inspections.

There was a letter sent to members of the Planning Board in opposition and expressing concerns
over the proposed community solar farm on productive, active farmland. In addition, a petition
of 12 signatures was signed addressing “the Town of Pulteney has a Comprehensive Plan that
strives to conserve our rural heritage, support the agricultural character of our Town, protect
active farmland, and encourage property owners to keep land in agricultural use; and the
Delaware River Solar Farm Project on Chidsey Hill threatens and will remove farmland in active
productions, and forever altering the character of the local farming community of the Town of
Pulteney” asking the Planning Board to reject the proposal. There is concern that the solar farm
will break up the 2 parcels of farmland and by losing one parcel, the farmer will not want to farm
the other parcel, meaning there wouldn’t be 35 acres affected but 135 acres would be out of
production. Joe Sheehy thanked the non-contiguous neighbor and was impressed by their
concerned letter to the Planning Board members. It was mentioned the neighbor had only heard
of the solar project in early April by word of mouth. She suggested expanding the Town’s reach
of notification rather than to just contiguous neighbors.

It was again mentioned, the current poor road condition of Chidsey Hill and the concern that
construction vehicles will only worsen. Dave stated a traffic plan was submitted to the Planning
Board last month and plans were readily available to view. All traffic will be coming from the
west to Chidsey Hill. It was suggested speed bumps be placed to help with high-speed drivers.

The public noted that positives for the solar farm being developed and existing for the potential
of 30 years or more, would mean other residential developments could not be built on that
property existing forever. Once the solar farm meets its life expectancy, the land will return to
how it is currently being agricultural farmland. There will be 411 sq. ft of post (several times
smaller than if an average home was constructed) on 22.94 acres. Annie reported other benefits
include an electrical infrastructure upgrade, the production of green energy, the option to
subscribe and receive 10% off their electrical bill, receive pilot (payment in lieu of taxes)
payments-additional tax base compared to what the Town was receiving as agricultural land.



Town Supervisor Mark Illig thanked the Planning Board for their patience and diligence. He
thanked the applicants and noted throughout this entire process, they have taken the Town Solar
Law and based their application and project designs around the Town’s regulations. They have
taken the necessary steps to fit within the Town guidelines and expectations. He also thanked the
public for their mostly appropriate concerns. Any suggestions regarding how the Town send
notifications and/or Chidsey Hill Road conditions can be heard at the Town Board meetings on
the 2™ Wed of every month.

The Planning Board thanked the public for their thorough research, they have listened to the
public concerns, that have in turn made them aware of considerations that would not have been
thought of otherwise. This is a decision that will not be entered into lightly. The Board is also
thankful to the project teams for their appropriate revisions, and making the improvements based
on public concern.

With nothing further heard from the Board and public, Bill Dineen made motion seconded by
Megan Granata to close the public hearing. All in favor. Carried. In compliance with SEQRA
documents, The Board is required to review Part 2 and Part 3-Identification of Potential Project
Impacts of the Full Environmental Assessment Form. After reviewing, Bill Dineen made motion
seconded by Mark Fellows to approve Part 2 and Part 3 as presented declaring a negative
significant impact on the environment. All in favor. Carried. Bill Dineen made motion
seconded by Mark Fellows to approve the Resolution-Determination of a negative declaration of
significant adverse environmental impact for the proposed Delaware River Solar NY Pulteney I
Chidsey Hill Road Community Solar Project as presented and dated May 10, 2021. All in favor.
Carried. See attached Resolution.

Chairman Gibson asked the Board if they were prepared to vote on the proposed special use
permit? All agreed. Megan Granata made motion seconded by Mark Fellows to vote on the
Delaware River Solar, LLC/NY Pulteney 1, LL.C Special Use Permit Application #2020/07 as
presented for a 3.0MW solar farm on 22.94 acres on Chidsey Hill Road in District #3. Roll call
vote: Mark Fellows, yes; Terry Gibson, yes; Dan Radigan, yes; Megan Granata, yes; Joe
Sheehy, yes; Bill Dineen, yes; Jim Howitt, abstain. Vote approved yes 6-0. The appropriate
agencies will be notified of the negative declaration Resolution and special use permit approval.

Dan Radigan made motion seconded by Joe Sheehy to approve the minutes of the April 12, 2021
Planning Board meeting. All in favor. Carried.

Bill Dineen commented he received an email from a concerned resident in regards to a noise
ordinance. It has been discussed in the past and ultimately, the Planning and Town Boards, have
decided it would be impossible to enforce. When noise is a concern, the resident is to call 911.
Bill will follow-up with the concerned resident to discuss further and possibly look into other
Town noise ordinances.

Chairman Gibson asked the Board if there was any further business. All denied.

Mark Fellows made motion seconded by Joe Sheehy to adjourn the meeting. All in favor.
Carried. Meeting adjourned 8:45pm.



INITIAL RESOLUTION
(NY Pulteney I, LLC Project)

A regular meeting of the Steuben County Industrial Development Agency was convened
on Thursday, August 26, 2021.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:
Resolution No. 08/2021 -

RESOLUTION OF THE  STEUBEN COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (THE "AGENCY"™) (i) ACCEPTING THE
APPLICATION OF NY PULTENEY I, LLC WITH RESPECT TO A CERTAIN
PROJECT (AS MORE FULLY DESCRIBED BELOW), (ii) AUTHORIZING
THE SCHEDULING OF A PUBLIC HEARING WITH RESPECT TO THE
PROJECT, (iii) DESCRIBING THE FORMS OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
BEING CONTEMPLATED WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT, AND (iv)
AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION OF CERTAIN AGREEMENTS
RELATING TO THE PROJECT.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of
New York, as amended, and Chapter 178 of the Laws of 1972 of the State of New York, as
amended (hereinafter collectively called the "Act"), the STEUBEN COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (hereinafter called "Agency") was created with the authority and
power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring,
constructing and equipping industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized by
the Act; and

WHEREAS, NY PULTENEY I, LLC, for itself or on behalf of an entity to be formed
by it or on its behalf (collectively, the "Company"), has submitted an application (the
"Application™), a copy of which is on file with the Agency, requesting the Agency's assistance
with respect to a certain project (the "Project™), consisting of: (i) the acquisition by the Agency of
a leasehold interest in approximately 23 acres of real property located at 8897 Chidsey Hill
Road, Town of Pulteney, New York (the "Land", being more particularly described as a portion
of tax parcel No. 012.00-01-008.200, as may be subdivided); (ii) the planning, design,
construction and operation of a 3MWac PV solar electrical generation system, including panel
foundations, inverters, transformers, interconnect wiring, utility connections, sitework,
landscaping, fencing, security and related improvements (collectively, the "Improvements"); and
(iii) the acquisition of and installation in and around the Land and Improvements by the
Company of machinery, equipment, fixtures and other items of tangible personal property (the
"Equipment”; and, together with the Land and the Improvements, the "Facility™); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law the Agency desires

to adopt a resolution describing the Project and the Financial Assistance (as defined below) that
the Agency is contemplating with respect to the Project; and

Error! Unknown document property name.



WHEREAS, it is contemplated that the Agency will hold a public hearing and (i)
negotiate and enter into a project agreement, pursuant to which the Agency will appoint the
Company as its agent for the purpose of undertaking the Project (the "Project Agreement"), (ii)
negotiate and enter into a lease agreement (the "Lease Agreement™), a leaseback agreement (the
"Leaseback Agreement"), and a payment-in-lieu-of-tax agreement (the "Tax Agreement"), (iii)
take a leasehold interest (or other interest) in the Land and the Improvements and personal
property constituting the Facility (once the Lease Agreement, the Leaseback Agreement and the
Tax Agreement have been negotiated), and (iv) provide Financial Assistance to the Company in
the form of (a) a sales and use tax exemption for purchases and rentals related to the acquisition,
construction, and equipping of the Facility, (b) a partial real property tax abatement structured
within the Tax Agreement, and (c) an exemption from mortgage recording taxes imposed on the
financing related to the Project (collectively, the "Financial Assistance™).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE STEUBEN
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Company has presented an Application in a form acceptable to the
Agency. Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in the Company’s
Application, the Agency hereby finds and determines that:

(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all
powers granted to it under the Act; and

(B)  The Agency has the authority to take the actions contemplated herein under the
Act; and

(C)  The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to develop the
Project, thereby increasing employment opportunities in Steuben County, New York, and
otherwise furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in the Act; and

(D)  The Project will not result in the removal of a civic, commercial, industrial, or
manufacturing plant of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project from one
area of the State of New York (the "State") to another area of the State or result in the
abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Company or any other proposed occupant
of the Project located within the State; and the Agency hereby finds that, based on the
Company’s application, to the extent occupants are relocating from one plant or facility to
another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage the Project occupants from removing
such other plant or facility to a location outside the State and/or is reasonably necessary to
preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in their respective industries; and

Section 2. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Executive Director of the Agency
are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to (A) hold a public hearing in compliance with
the Act, and (B) negotiate (1) the Project Agreement, pursuant to which the Agency appoints the
Company as its agent to undertake the Project, (2) the Lease Agreement, pursuant to which the

Page 2



Company leases the Project to the Agency, (3) the related Leaseback Agreement, pursuant to
which the Agency leases its interest in the Project back to the Company, (4) the Tax Agreement,
pursuant to which the Company agrees to make certain payments in lieu of real property taxes
for the benefit of affected tax jurisdictions, and (5) related documents; provided (i) the rental
payments under the Leaseback Agreement include payments of all costs incurred by the Agency
arising out of or related to the Project and indemnification of the Agency by the Company for
actions taken by the Company and/or claims arising out of or related to the Project; and (ii) the
terms of the Tax Agreement are consistent with the Agency's Uniform Tax Exemption Policy or
the procedures for deviation therefrom have been complied with.

Section 3. The Agency is hereby authorized to conduct a public hearing in
compliance with the Act.

Section 4. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required
and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the
opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of
the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants
and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency.

Section 5. In the event that (a) the Company does not proceed to final Agency
approval within six (6) months of the date hereof and/or (b) close with the Agency on the
proposed Financial Assistance within twelve (12) months of the date hereof, the Agency reserves
the right to rescind and cancel this resolution and all approvals made hereunder or under any
other Agency resolution or action.

Section 6. These Resolutions shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to vote on roll call,
which resulted as follows:

Yea Nay Abstain Absent
Mark R. Alger [ ] [ ] [ 1 [ 1
Scott J. VanEtten [ ] [ 1 [ 1 [ 1
Anthony Russo [ ] [ ] [ ] [ 1
Dean Strobel [ ] [ 1 [ 1 [ ]
Mike Davidson [ ] [ 1 [ 1 [ ]
Christine Sharkey [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]

The Resolutions were thereupon duly adopted.

Page 3



SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATION
(NY Pulteney I, LLC Project)

STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF STEUBEN ) SS.:

I, the undersigned, Secretary of the Steuben County Industrial Development Agency, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY:

That | have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of the Steuben
County Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency"), including the resolution contained
therein, held on August 26, 2021, with the original thereof on file in the office of the Agency,
and that the same is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such
resolution set forth therein and of the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the
subject matters therein referred to.

| FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting,
that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public
notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Article 7.

| FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present
throughout said meeting.

| FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said
Agency this ___ day of , 2021.

Secretary

Page 4



